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MISSION STATEMENT
ExE®

We contribute to the advancement of society
by providing people with quality products and
employing advanced technology, with protecting the
environment always in mind. We hire and nurture
professionals and, together, we march towards our

goals in pace with time. Putting customers first, we

provide them with the best products and services,
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To become the leading and
most reputable and reliable
EMS (Electronics Manufacturing
Services) provider in Asia.
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Financial Highlights

. =7
B 154 2
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—=fF —E——F
FTET FHET
OPERATING RESULTS B& %45
For the year ended 31 March #E=F=+—H It FE
Revenue Y& 1,107,488 1,241,997
Gross profit £ 146,889 165,277
Operating profit 48 % & 7 81,806 99,962
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 78 A )% A A JE 14 i 7 77,841 93,252
Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents) &% & F| —Z A& (B1l) 28.59 34.26
Interim dividend, paid, per ordinary share (HK cents) &% & @ A% 2 4 o 2RAL B (B4L) 7.0 7.0
Final dividend, proposed, per ordinary share (HK cents) &% % 18 B 8k R B 2 (B4L) 7.0 10.0
FINANCIAL POSITION Bf # kiR
As at 31 March A=A =+—H
Total equity #E 54258 472,704 437,206
Net current assets /i B) & &= #1E 339,009 299,884
Net cash 38 & %58 141,166 112,120
Capital expenditure & 7485 % 72,475 15,821
Net assets value per share (HK cents) &% & & FE (A1) 173.6 160.6
FINANCIAL RATIOS BA 7%tk &
Current ratio i B Lt = 2.94 2.46
Debt to equity ratio & B H & 21.7% 7.3%
Inventory turnover days 77 &A% B & 56 53
Debtors turnover days FEURBR 71 E 8 H £ 40 38
Return on average equity “F 3 i& 7x [2] i &= 17.1% 22.2%




Financial Highlights

g E
REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE W& Z % E 38 5l 9 #7
For the year ended 31 March
BEZE=H=+—HLEE
2013 2012 % Change
HK$’000 HK$'000
S®-=f | —T-—F #BHEH
FET FHET
Electronic products & F /& fn 1,075,368 1,193,273 -9.9%
Moulds and plastic products 18 & K& B B &= & 32,120 48,724 -34.1%
Total #B5T 1,107,488 1,241,997 -10.8%

REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE
W IR E m BRI o

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT
Logaize: =Rl

PRC (including
2.9% HrnmmEn T 3.08% i " 10.75% @ mims
- - 1 [
-
21.09% §, 6:19% =E°
Japan
\ 17.52%
97.1% 2013 Kingaom
ie%%nli:c products | EE
. =i&Em 41, 37%
The United States
ofAmenca
REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL 5
SEGMENT Y 35 #% ith [& 43 47
For the year ended 31 March ﬁl}‘l
BEZA=+—ALEE -
2013 2012 % Change ﬁijf*‘ﬂ
HK$'000 HK$'000 |
—F—=F —T-—4 E¥aH
TET FAETT
The United States of America 3 & 458,159 404,624 13.2%
United Kingdom %[5 194,017 301,611 -35.7%
Japan HZK 233,575 256,426 -8.9%
PRC (including Hong Kong) Bl (B1E&EE) 119,122 116,516 2.2%
Australia 8 34,090 42 149 -19.1%
Others EAth 68,525 120,671 -43.2%

Total 425t

1,107,488 1,241,997 -10.8%
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Qhair@an’s Statement
T E s

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
annual results of Suga International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“SUGA” or the “Group”) for
the fiscal year ended 31 March 2013 (“FY2012/13").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The overall business environment has remained challenging
owing to weakened consumer confidence. Nevertheless,
SUGA sustained profitability, leveraging a balanced yet
diversified product portfolio, as well as benefiting from close
cooperation with its longstanding business partners.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,107.5 million,
representing a decrease of 10.8% from HK$1,242.0 million
last year. Gross profit was HK$146.9 million (FY2011/12:
HK$165.3 million). The Group was able to maintain its
gross profit margin at 13.3% (FY2011/12: 13.3%) through
stringent control of internal costs. Profit attributable
to shareholders dipped by 16.5% to HK$77.8 million
(FY2011/12: HK$93.3 million). Net profit margin was 7.0%
(FY2011/12: 7.5%). Basic earnings per share was HK28.59
cents (FY2011/12: HK34.26 cents).

AARBREREFTE MARLEEBRBREES
RAB ([ARA]) REMBAR (A1 5]
FAEEBE-_T—=F=A=1t—HL
MBREFE([ZF——/—=FHBFE] &2

RERB

HEEORBSTBELHRBEET ML
R - BB EZTEMEMES - ML
HEMEBBHNETRAE EEDRERER
2

AEEEBUW1,107,500,000/8 T 8=
F#91,242,000,0007 7T NF#10.8% ° EF| A&
146,900,000 L (=T —— / — ZF B K F
[£ : 165,300,000/ 7T ) ° ANEEE @A IR
ERRA  SEFRBUMKEFNIZ3I% (ZF——
S — —EBREE 13.3% )  REEMLHEF T
[%16.5%%77,800,0008 T (ZE——/—=
F BB £ 93,300,000 7T ) © 4EF & A7.0%
(ZZ——/——FHHRFEE 75%) - FIRE
RNEF H28.598 M (—ZB—— /— —F o KRF
€ :34.26510) °
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK7.0 cents per share (FY2011/12: HK10.0
cents per share) to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Shareholders of the Company on 15 August
2013. Together with an interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per
share already paid, total dividend for the year will amount
to HK14.0 cents per share (FY2011/12: HK17.0 cents per
share). Subject to approval by shareholders at the 2013
Annual General Meeting, the proposed final dividend is to be
paid on or before 22 August 2013. The dividend represents
49.0% of the profit attributable to the owners of the Group for
the fiscal year.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
ELECTRONIC PRODUCTS

The electronic products segment generated sales of
HK$1,075.4 million (FY2011/12: HK$1,193.3 million),
accounting for 97.1% of the Group’s total sales.

While the lackluster economic conditions did affect some
of our clients, we were able to leverage our balanced
product portfolio to sustain the growth of some of our major
products, thus mitigating the impact of lower demand for
other products. In respect of pet training devices, we saw
satisfactory sales growth as the pet market in the U.S.
gradually picked up. As for the professional audio equipment
segment, it performed in a stable manner, providing a steady
source of income to the Group. However, sales from general
consumer electronic products tapered slightly, as a renowned
Japanese client took a more conservative approach towards
placing orders, a clear indication of the sluggish economic
climate. The underperformance of the interactive educational
products business was more prominent than expected in the
second half year as our partner, which principally operates in
Europe, continued to be impacted by the economic crisis and
weak consumption sentiment.

SUGA was able to capture more opportunities with
longstanding partners by enhancing its value-added services.
Case in point, our pet training devices and interactive
education products partners have sought for our greater
involvement in product development, seeking to leverage the
Group’s R&D expertise and cost advantage.

iz B

EEEBRNTRARESRERH7.08WL (=
——/——_FWREE : FRI0.0BMU) F =
T —=—F \A+RHBRBINARRRELMARE
HeEREANREN P HKEFR7.0E ML &
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FRREBAF AT ER  EREARBAREBER
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Apart from protecting the wellbeing of our existing
businesses, we have sought to enter new product segments.
The PETNFANS pet tracking product is a clear example.
Introduced at the Hong Kong Electronics Fair (Spring Edition)
in April 2013, PETNFANS, which employs Bluetooth 4.0
low-energy technology, received a warm reception from the
market.

MOULDS AND PLASTIC PRODUCTS

Sales from the moulds and plastic segment recorded revenue
of HK$32.1 million (FY11/12: HK$48.7 million), accounting
for 2.9% of SUGA’s total sales. With most of the products
from this segment used to satisfy the Group’s internal needs,
such accessibility again highlights the importance of the
business in playing a vertical integration role. Despite the
ancillary position of this business, the management remains
committed to ensuring that a reasonable margin level is
sustained.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ACTIVITIES AND GREEN ACHIEVEMENTS

The Group is committed to being a responsible corporate
citizen. This commitment includes environmental protection
as demonstrated by the “Supply Chain Sustainability” method
employed by Suga Electronics Limited, which went on to
garner the Green Achievement Award — Certificate of Merit,
part of HSBC Living Business Awards 2012. To directly give
back to the community, we have been involved in a number
of social activities, including Green Council’s International
Coastal Cleanup 2012 Hong Kong; The Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association’s fund raising walkathon; and Green
Power's Green Power Hike 2013, all of which not only
raised money for worthwhile causes but also attracted staff
members’ participation.

Chairman’s Statement
FREHmE

REEHFRREEE N ARENRNEE
HiE R R - PI - B =B — =0 A 84T
BB ETET E QR HPETNFANSTE N6
Hig - B AR E FA0RAERM BT
RIS -

BEAERIPBEMR

18 B K ¥ BRI ES A&32,100,000/8 7T (==
—— /— ZFBINEE 48,700,000 7T) - 14
S EBRIHETEM2.9% » AL 7 504 E B K26
MERTBERRAEEANBAE BEFRE
REBHNEEES HATBES LTS -
EEEDNABNBEREHFFSEMNER K-

ERHAEEERREAMM

AEBRERSBEENEERAR B E
TEFTAERARE DESZmaeE ) REF S
2012 PG EMKH ENE RN KB H
RS RENE| TEnE R - REE
e AEET2EZELSEE BRERRRE
ESRRNFEEREREREH012 -FE
EFXREEMNTTERRIRENERE
172013]) » LAURBI T EEEEK EWSIET
B2

B E1/2102




[
N

b4 T
gc

O
e
By —
S 9
S 2
e
=
i~ —
ool

O

TYNOILYNHILINI YONS

Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

PROSPECTS

Despite economic conditions in Europe remaining shaky,
there are signs of an economic recovery in the United States,
which, as the world’s largest economy, will help moderate
volatility in the global economy. What is more, the generally
positive sentiment from customers about the coming financial
year offers optimism for the Group. As opportunities emerge
in tandem with greater consumer confidence, SUGA will be
prepared to grasp such opportunities.

For interactive educational products and pet training devices,
new models will be launched in FY2013/14. We expect
that sales from these new models together with recovering
demand for existing models will help drive up revenue for the
two product segments.

We are also proactively strengthening ties with customers
by offering value-added services, with the ultimate goal of
enhancing our profit margins. For the past several years,
SUGA’s R&D capability has been gaining recognition from
its partners, resulting in a gradual rise in collaborative work.
In view of our cost advantage and ability to deliver reliable
technologies, we were selected to develop a new interactive
educational product and pet training device. Aside from
these products, we are working with a U.S. partner on a
telecommunications device for the hearing impaired. The
management is optimistic about the potential of this niche
product as it will be particularly relevant to the elderly, and
given that many parts of the world have aging populations.
We will seek to secure still more R&D opportunities with
existing and new customers going forward.

Yet another product in the works is PETNFANS, a pet
tracking product that employs Bluetooth 4.0 technology and
directed towards smart phone users. It will be introduced
on the market in July 2013. We will be exploring even more
applications for Bluetooth 4.0 as we seek to tap a larger
variety of electronic devices.
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Market research indicates that the online market for pet
products in the PRC is immense. We are therefore exploring
the possibility of cooperating with partners experienced
in online retailing with the goal of introducing a dedicated
platform for our pet products. This online store will create a
direct link with physical stores to improve brand recognition
and sales.

Complementing on product development efforts will be the
consolidation of our production activities. The activities that
have been conducted at our Buji and Xi Xiang factories will
be brought to the Dongguan facility in 2014. This will lead
to centralized production and allow us to capitalize on lower
labor costs. Having commenced construction at the end of
2012, the Dongguan factory is expected to be completed in
the first quarter of 2014.

Following the decision to shift production to Dongguan,
the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement in
December 2012 regarding the Buji Shenzhen property, which
is where one of the factories is currently located. A cash
consideration of RMB138,000,000 has been agreed upon
with the purchaser, and the transaction will be completed in
2014.

Though the global economic recovery remains slow, we
will leverage our solid foundation to explore new business
opportunities, so as to deliver satisfactory returns to our
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my
appreciation to the management team and the entire
workforce for their dedication and hard work over the past
year. Certainly, all of our customers, business partners and
shareholders must be lauded for their unequivocal support.

Ng Chi Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

During the year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,107.5
million, representing a decrease of 10.8% as compared with
HK$1,242.0 million in last year. The decrease was mainly
due to the drop in sales of interactive educational products
and the moulds and plastic products.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports that are used to make strategic decisions by the
Group senior management. The Group senior management
considers the Group business mainly from product
perspective, and the products of the Group are mainly
divided into electronic products and moulds and plastic
products.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, sales of electronic
products decreased by 9.9% to HK$1,075.4 million (2012:
HK$1,193.3 million). The electronic products segment covers
specialized electronic products, general consumer electronic
products and other electronic products.

BA %5 B B
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RO

As for moulds and plastic products, revenue decreased by
34.1% to HK$32.1 million (2012: HK$48.7 million) and
accounted for 2.9% of the group’s total revenue.

Geographically, for the year ended 31 March 2013, revenue
generated from the top 3 countries, the United States of
America, the United Kingdom and Japan, accounting for
80.0% of the Group’s total sales (2012: 77.5%).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Despite continuous rise in production cost, especially labour
cost, the Group is able to maintain a steady gross profit
margin of 13.3% (2012: 13.3%) through stringent control
of internal cost, including greater automation, implemented
by the management. Gross profit for the year decreased by
11.1% to 146.9 million (2012: HK$165.3 million).

Operating profit was HK$81.8 million, compared with
HK$100.0 million last year, a decreased of 18.2%. The
decrease in operating profit was primarily due to the decrease
in revenue, and the increase in selling and distribution
expenses, and general and administration expenses. Selling
and distribution expenses increased by 22.2% during the
year primarily due to the employment of the overseas sale
team after the acquisition of the remaining 50% share
of Suga Technology Limited in May 2012. General and
administration expenses increased by 16.4% during the year
mainly attributable to the increase in depreciation expense,
professional fees and bank charges. The increase in those
expenses was due to the acquisition of a parcel of land in
Dongguan in May 2012 and the borrowing of two long-term
bank loans during the year for financing the acquisition
of land and construction of the new factory buildings in
Dongguan.

AEANBRBRERAFE WEHAP34.1%2
32,100,000/ 7t ( == — — £ : 48,700,000/
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For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has achieved
a net finance income of HK$1.9 million (2012: HK$1.9
million). The finance income was arising from income
received from bonds investments and short-term deposits.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, profit attributable to
owners of the Company decreased to HK$77.8 million from
HK$93.3 million last year, representing a decrease of 16.5%.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has current assets of
HK$513.5 million and current liabilities of HK$174.5 million.
The current ratio was 2.94 (31 March 2012: 2.46).

Bank borrowings were HK$102.5 million as at 31 March
2013 (31 March 2012: HK$31.8 million). The increase in
total bank borrowings was mainly due to the drawdown of
two new long-term bank loans during the year. Gearing ratio
(calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by total equity)
was 21.7% (31 March 2012: 7.3%) The Group maintained a
net cash balance of HK$141.2 million as at the balance sheet
date (31 March 2012: HK$112.1 million).

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$437.7 million (31 March 2012:
HK$349.8 million) from its principal bankers for overdrafts,
loans and trade financing, with unused facilities of HK$312.6
million (31 March 2012: HK$299.3 million).

The Group generally finances its operations by internally
generated resources and banking facilities provided by its
principal bankers in Hong Kong. Banking facilities used
by the Group include revolving loans, trust receipt loans,
overdrafts, leasing and term loans, which are primarily on
floating interest rates basis.
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ACQUISITION OF SUGA TECHNOLOGY
LIMITED

In May 2012, the Group entered into a business combination
to acquire the remaining 50% equity interest in Suga
Technology Limited (formerly known as Suga-Al Limited), a
then jointly controlled entity, from the other shareholder of
Suga Technology Limited. The consideration was satisfied
by US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,500,000) in cash.
A contingent consideration, subject to a maximum of
US$500,000 was also agreed should certain performance
results achieved by Suga Technology Limited during the 30
months period from acquisition date. Upon acquisition, Suga
Technology Limited became a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group.

Based on a valuation performed by an independent valuer,
the fair value of the 50% equity interest in Suga Technology
Limited previously held by the Group on acquisition date was
assessed to be HK$8,908,000. A gain on re-measurement of
this previously held interest of HK$8,908,000 has accordingly
been recognized as “other gains, net” in the consolidated
income statement.

ACQUISITION OF THE ENTIRE EQUITY
INTEREST IN BENEFIT HOLDING CO.,
LTD.

On 7 May 2012, Suga International Limited (“Suga
International”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Mr. Ni Cheng-Tao (the “Vendor”) entered into an
agreement pursuant to which Suga International agreed to
purchase, and the Vendor agreed to sell, the entire equity
interest of Benefit Holding Co., Ltd. (“Benefit Holding")
a company incorporated in Samoa, at a consideration of
RMB43.9 million (the “Purchase Consideration”). The
principal business activity of Benefit Holding is investment
holding and the sole non-current asset of Benefit Holding is
its 100% equity interest in Dongguan Benefit Mechanicals
Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Benefit”). Dongguan Benefit owns
the land use rights of a parcel of land with site area of
approximately 53,361 square metres located at Sanzhong
Village, Qingxi Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province,
PRC (the “Dongguan Land”). The Group proposes to expend
its production facilities in the PRC with the Dongguan
Land. The transaction was completed and the Purchase
Consideration fully paid in December 2012.
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DISPOSAL OF UNIVERSAL GAIN

On 19 December 2012, Suga International Limited
(“Suga International”), and Mr. Wong Chun Leung (the
“Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Agreement”) pursuant to which the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase, and Suga International
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued capital of
Universal Gain Assets Limited (“Universal Gain”) for a cash
consideration of RMB138,000,000 (the “Consideration”).
Universal Gain holds 100% of the entire issued share capital
of Typhoon International Limited (“Typhoon International”)
which owns two factory blocks, three staff quarters, one
electricity room and one canteen with a total gross floor area
of 48,300 square meters erected on Li Lang, Buji, Shenzhen
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Buji Property”).
Suga International had received from the Purchaser
RMB13,800,000, being 10% of the Consideration, within
five days from the date of the Agreement. The balance of
the Consideration shall be paid by the Purchaser to Suga
International after the delivery of the Buji Property by the
Group to the Purchaser. The Group expects the transaction
will be completed in mid-2014 (the “Completion”).
Upon Completion, the Group expects to recognize an
unaudited accounting gain of approximately HK$149.8
million, being the difference between the Consideration of
RMB138,000,000 and the estimated unaudited consolidated
net asset value of Universal Gain as at 31 March 2013. The
actual gain or loss as a result of the disposal of Universal
Gain to be recorded by the Group is subject to audit and will
be determined as at the date of Completion.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's total capital expenditures for the year under
review were HK$72.5 million. The capital expenditures were
mainly for the purchase of the Dongguan Land and the
construction of new factory buildings amounting to HK$57.6
million and HK$7.2 million respectively. The remaining
balance of the capital expenditures was mainly for the
additions of machineries and equipment for PRC production
plants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group's transaction and monetary assets are principally
dominated in Reminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars. The Group did not experience any difficulties
or effects on its operations or liquidity as a result of the
fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year
ended 31 March 2013.

During the year, the Group entered into several foreign
exchange contracts to manage the currency translation risk
of Reminbi against United States dollars. All these foreign
exchange contracts were for managing risk and it is the policy
of the Group not to enter into any derivative contracts purely
for speculative activities. The net realized and unrealized
profit on derivative instruments as of the balance sheet date
was HK$2.7 million.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had pledged its office
premise located at 22nd floor, tower B, Billion Centre,
Kowloon Bay together with 4 car parking spaces to secure
a bank mortgage loan of HK$20.8 million (31 March 2012:
HK$23.5 million) for financing the acquisition of the office
premise and car parking spaces. Other than the said
mortgage loan, the Group had not pledged any of its assets as
security for the banking facilities granted to the Group.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 6 December 2012 Dongguan Benefit, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
construction contract with Guangdong Hongda Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd. (the “Contractor”), under which the
Contractor has agreed to construct two factory buildings
and three dormitories with gross construction floor area of
approximately 72,723 square metres on the Dongguan Land
for Dongguan Benefit for RMB78.2 million. The construction
work will take about 365 days to complete.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had a capital commitment
of HK$92.5 million for the above construction contract (31
March 2012: nil). Corporate guarantees given to banks to
secure the borrowings granted to subsidiaries as at 31 March
2013 amounted to HK$125.1 million (31 March 2012:
HK$50.6 million) and the Group did not have any significant
contingent liability.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2013 the Group has 2,178 employees, of
which 51 were based in Hong Kong and Macao while the rest
were mainly in Mainland China. Remuneration policy was
reviewed regularly, making reference to current legislation,
market condition and both the individual and company
performance. In addition to salaries and other usual benefits
like annual leave, medical insurance and various mandatory
pension schemes, the Group also provides educational
sponsorship subsidies, discretionary performance bonus and
share options. A new share option scheme was adopted on
6 August 2012 which is valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the adoption date, detailed of which are specified
in the Section “Share Option Scheme” on page 47 of this
annual report.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENEREEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. NG Chi Ho, aged 63 is the founder, chairman and
managing director of the Group. He is responsible for the
formulation of corporate strategy, strategic planning and
development, and overall management of the Group. Dr.
NG has over 36 years of management experience in the
electronics industry and had been a lecturer in electronic
engineering at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University for 4
years. He has been appointed by Beijing JiaoTong University
as the Advisory Professor in the School of Electronic and
Information Engineering since 2013. Dr. NG holds a bachelor
degree in science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
a master of philosophy degree in computer engineering from
the University of Hong Kong, and an honorary doctor of
engineering degree from Lincoln University, USA. Dr. NG is a
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EELEMEEABRE

chartered engineer, a fellow of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, UK, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and an honorary fellow of the Canadian Chartered
Institute of Business Administration. In addition, Dr. NG is a
general committee member of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries, chairman of Hong Kong Electronics Industries
Council, honorary vice chairman of Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association. He is also a member of the advisory
committee of Electronic and Electrical Industries of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council, as well as member of the
advisory committee on Electronic Engineering of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. MA Fung On, aged 55, is the deputy chairman of the
Group. Mr. MA is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategic planning and policies, as well as
overseeing the personnel, administration and logistics of the
Group. Mr. MA has worked with the Group for more than 20
years and has over 31 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a higher diploma in electronic engineering.
Mr. MA is the Electronics and Telecommunications Training
Board Member, the Advisory Committee Member on Pro-
Act Training and Development Centre (Electronics) Courses
of Vocational Training Council and member of Working Party
on Manpower Survey, Electronics & Communication Training
Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kam Hung, aged 55, is a non-executive director
of the Group. He holds a master degree in engineering
business management from the University of Warwick in the
UK. Mr. LEE is now the founder, chairman and technical
director of Hong Kong Automotive X'tals Limited and its
group companies. Mr. LEE is a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. In addition, Mr. LEE is the vice
president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and
Youth Council, director of Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry
Association, member of Design Smart Initiative Assessment
Panel and Shield Industrial Centre Owner’'s Corporation,
executive committee member of the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries. He is also an advisory committee member
on Department of Applied Physics and honorary life director
of PolyU Development Foundation of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Professor WONG Sook Leung, Joshua, aged 74, is an
independent non-executive director of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Group. Prof.
WONG is presently the Professor Emeritus of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has over 34 years of working
experience with tertiary educational institutions including
28 years with the Hong Kong Polytechnic University of
which 6 years as the vice president, 2 years as the senior
consultant, 10 years as chair professor in electronic and
information engineering department and 16 years as the
head of electronic engineering department. Prior to joining
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, he was an associate
professor of California State University at Los Angeles, US
from 1968 to 1974. In addition, he was the president of the
Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science and
Technology in 1988/89. Prof. WONG is currently president
of the Hong Kong Semiconductor Industries Council. Prof.
WONG obtained his bachelor of engineering degree from
the University of Hong Kong and his doctor of philosophy
degree from Leeds University, UK. He is also a chartered
engineer, a fellow member of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, UK and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers.

Mr. LEUNG Yu Ming, Steven, aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Group and a member of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Group. Mr. LEUNG holds a master degree
in accounting from Charles Sturt University in Australia
and a bachelor degree in social science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, a practising certified accountant of CPA Australia and
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
respectively. Mr. LEUNG is also a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG previously worked in
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Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited as an assistant
vice president in the International Finance and Corporate
Finance Department. He commenced public practice in
auditing and taxation since 1990. He is now the senior
partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr. LEUNG
has over 28 years of experience in assurance, accounting,
taxation, financial management and corporate finance. Mr.
LEUNG is also an independent non-executive director of
C C Land Holdings Limited, The Cross Harbour (Holdings)
Limited, Y.T. Realty Group Limited and Yugang International
Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Kit Wang, aged 60, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group and a member of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Group. Mr. CHAN graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1977 with a higher
diploma in accountancy. Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He is now a senior partner of a certified
public accountants firm. Mr. CHAN has over 36 years of
working experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, aged 56, is the chief financial
officer of the Group. Mr. LEE is responsible for overseeing
the corporate and financial matters of the Group. Mr. LEE is
a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He
is also an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. LEE
joined the Group in early 2005 and has over 33 years of
experience in corporate finance, accounting and auditing.
Before joining the Group, he worked for a blue chip listed
company in Hong Kong for over 18 years in a senior
executive position. Mr. LEE graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in accountancy.
He is the brother-in-law of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Group.
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Mr. WONG Wai Lik, Lamson, aged 49, is the general
manager of moulds and plastic products division and is
responsible for overseeing the operations of Huizhou plant.
Mr. WONG graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a higher diploma in production and industrial
engineering. He joined the Group in 1992 and has over 26
years of experience in production operations and supervision.

Ms. WONG Sin, Kathy, aged 43, is the general manager
of electronic manufacturing service (“EMS”) division of the
Group in Xixiang plant and is responsible for overseeing
the operations of the factory. Ms. WONG holds an EMBA
from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China. She joined the
Group in 2002 and has over 20 years of experience in the
electronics manufacturing industry.

Mr. TENG Boon Han, Eric, aged 35, is the general
manager of EMS and pet training products divisions
and is responsible for the overall operations including
programme management, order management, supply chain
management, product development and manufacturing in
Buji plant. Mr. TENG holds a bachelor degree of Business
Administration in Finance and Economics from University
of New Brunswick, Canada. He joined the Group in 2007.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. TENG worked for global IT
and telecommunication companies. He has had international
working exposure in the USA, Malaysia, Indonesia and
Thailand within those companies.

Mr. FUNG Chi Leung, Mark, aged 49, is the general
manager of the marketing division in Buji plant. He holds a
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Toronto in
Canada. Mr. FUNG has over 26 years of working experience
in electronics sales and marketing.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
committed to attain and uphold a high standard of corporate
governance that properly protect and promote the interests of
its shareholders and other stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, employees and the general public.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the
Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(effective from 1 April, 2012) (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for CG Code A.2.1.

CG Code A2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
report, the Group does not have a separate Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Dr. Ng Chi Ho currently holds
both positions. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
in the development and execution of long-term business
strategies. Going forward, the Group will periodically
review the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers
appointing an individual as Chief Executive Officer when it
thinks appropriate.
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Save the abovementioned deviation, none of the directors of
the Company is aware of information that would reasonably
indicate the Company is not or was not in compliance with
the CG Code for the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group’s overall management is vested in its board of
directors, which now comprises six members, coming from
diverse businesses and professional backgrounds. The
Board consisted of two executive directors, Dr. Ng Chi Ho
(Chairman), Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman), one non-
executive director, Mr. Lee Kam Hung and three independent
non-executive directors (‘INED’), Professor Wong Sook Leung,
Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven and Mr. Chan Kit Wang
(collectively the ‘Directors’).

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the
Group’s business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial
performance; to review the Group’s systems of internal
control; to approve the strategic plans, investment and
funding decision. For the financial reporting accountability,
the Board has the ultimate responsibility for preparing
the financial statements. The day-to-day management is
conducted by senior management and employees of the
Group, under the direction and supervision of the Directors.
When the Directors are aware of any events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, such events or conditions will
be clearly set out and discussed in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INEDs among whom one has to have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting of related finance management
expertise. The role of INED is to bring an independent and
objective view to the Board’s deliberations and decisions.
The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs
are independent.

All non-executive directors (including INEDs) have been
appointed for a term of one year and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company and Listing Rules at each annual general
meeting. Save as disclosed in the biographical details of each
director, there is no other relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
among members of the board.
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ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at least four times annually to review
business development and overall strategic policies. The
Board is supplied with relevant information by the senior
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to operational
and financial performance of the Group before each regular
board meeting. At least 14 days notice of a regular board
meeting is given to all directors to give them the opportunity
to attend. Board papers are dispatched to the directors
at least three days before the meeting to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal controls
of the Company and its subsidiaries, setting appropriate
policies and reviewing the effectiveness of such controls.
Internal control is defined as a process effected by the Board,
management and other personnel, designed to manage
rather then eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable, not absolute
assurance of the following:

- effectiveness and efficiency operations

- reliability of financial reporting

compliance with applicable laws and regulations

effectiveness of risk management functions

The Board conducted a review of the system of internal
controls of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2013 including the consideration of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering
reviews performed by the Audit Committee, executive
management and the independent auditors’ management
letters, if any, and is satisfied that the system of internal
control of the Group is functioning properly.
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Five regular meetings of the Board and one Annual General WHR_-ZT——/—=ZFFER HBITRAXEHRE

Meeting were held during the year of 2012/13. The FEEL—ARRBAFRAE - ZESLFE
attendance of each director at the meeting is set out as BEZHBEFHBOT

follows:—

Name of directors Board meeting AGM
EENA ExgeE BEEEXE
Executive directors HITES

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) REexEL(£E) 5/5 11
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) EERRE (FFE) 5/5 11
Non-executive directors EHMITES

Mr. Lee Kam Hung IR E 5/5 1/1
INEDs BAERITES

Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua HROHE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFHIE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRSNS 5/5 1/1
DIRECTORS’ TRAINING ESE=Bn |

Based on the training records provided to the Company by RIFEZEERAQARREZHFIGEE RZT—=
the directors, the directors have participated in the following /—=FE RN #EEH LR ELL N E:
training during the year of 2012/13:

Attended training courses,
seminars, workshops,

Directors in-house briefs
HEENRE #stE-
Eg nTnlﬂl = Pq nl‘%
z %Cé Executive directors HITES
Eg Dr. Ng Chi Ho REFEL v
E- Mr. Ma Fung On BEREE v
G ==
('f% Non-executive directors EHMITES
gjz> Mr. Lee Kam Hung RIS A v
N ——
S% INEDs BAEHITES
= Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua EREOHE v
r Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFETE v

Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR R S v



DIRECTORS” AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against
all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by
them in the executive of and discharge of their duties or in
relation thereto, the Company has arrange insurance cover
for this purpose.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has established four committees and has
delegated various responsibilities to the committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the corporation governance Committee (the “Corporation
Governance Committee”). All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference. The Board Committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs who are
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming
Steven and Mr. Chan Kit Wang. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee is Professor Wong Sook
Leung Joshua.

The Audit Committee meetings are held not less than twice
a year to review and discuss the internal control systems of
the Group, to review the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements, and also monitors the appointment and function
of the Group’s independent auditors. Additional meetings
may also be held by the Committee from time to time to
discuss special projects or other issues of which the Audit
Committee considers necessary. The Committee’s authority
and duties are set out in written terms of reference and are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.
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During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out
below:—

Member of Audit Committee

FARBITMABEZZEES®H SXEZE
B IRESIIT

Meeting attended

ERZBEBEgHE HESHRHY
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & &ase28& (£/E) 2/2
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFERTE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRSNS 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the fiscal year
2011/2012 annual report and fiscal year 2012/2013 interim
report, including the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control systems of the Group, conducted
discussions with the independent auditors on financial
reporting, compliance, and reported all relevant matters to
the Board.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the fiscal year
2012/2013 annual report in a meeting held on 19 June
2013.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs and is
currently chaired by Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua. No
director or senior executive will be involved in any discussion
in connection with his own remuneration. The meeting of the
Remuneration Committee shall normally be held not less than
once a year

The Company has adopted a model where the Remuneration
Committee performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve
the recommendation of executive directors and senior
management.
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The Committee’s principal responsibilities are to make ZEEZIEREAMERNRTEERSRE
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages B AEBZH T BRESeRMES  sIEH
of individual executive directors and senior management, TEEZFHRESSREEZ LB BB
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration EENEESRHEER -ZEE MR AEE
of non-executive directors and make recommendations to EFRINANG 2 FHE 5 R IRHEHIFTHES] - Bt
the Board on the remuneration structure. It also reviews FNZEgRAECBREEEARIENAAF R
and guides the formulation of the Group’s performance BB BN EENATELEER
related pay schemes. Term of reference which described the SPAl.

authorities and duties of the Remuneration Committee are

publicly available on the websites of the Company and the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the contents of which are in

compliance with the CG Code.

During the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were ~ FRHEBITMAFMEZE S @5 SKEZE
held and the individual attendance of each member is setout Bl HE X EE 20T

below:—

Member of the Remuneration Committee Meeting attended
FMZEEENE HEEZXH
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & &ase28% (£/E) 2/2
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFRTE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR 2/2

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and ~ FA - HMEZESGEEMERERNRNITES 3
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration WTES BUFNTESEAREEE . H
packages of individual executive directors, non-executive  EiFBHESgREER TEEHaRERE
directors, the INEDs, and senior management; and reviewed J& 2 TE4L °

the bonus to senior management.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March, 2013, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band is set out
below:—

Remuneration bands (HK$)

EENSREERE 2FH

BE_ZT—=F=A=+—HILFE aRE
BEABRBER D ZHMEINWT

Number of persons

&R (Ex) AH
$500,001 to $1,000,000 500,001% 7t &1,000,000/% 7T 3
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001 7t & 2,000,000/ 7T

$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remunerations and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs who are
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming
Steven and Mr. Chan Kit Wang and is currently chaired by
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua.

The meeting of the Nomination Committee shall normally be
held not less than once a year. The Committee will identify
qualified candidates to fill the Board membership whenever
such vacancy arises. It will nominate such candidates for the
Board to consider, and regularly review the composition of the
Board as well as make suggestions as to any change that may
be required. The Committee’s authority and duties are set out
in written terms of reference and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year. Details of individuals attendance of its members are set

out in the table below:—

Member of the Nomination Committee

BRI £ TR R ER1678 T AR R A B & = 5 i
RS HER 2E— SRHBENGRA MK
R MIE36 -

REBERE

RAZEEH-_2BUFATEST (DHAE
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FRAERRHK -

RAZEE REFETTIR-REZ-Z
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EEM WHRRARABHEZTSER UK
RN EESER LA HEEEIE
HEH -ZERZRNEBEHNE MBS
B EEEHNARR M B Mk
o

B FIB AN Tk

Meeting attended

REZEEME HEEEXH
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & fase2i% (£/E) 2/2
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven REFILE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRI SE 2/2



During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board; make
recommendations to the Board on re-election of the directors
subject to retirement by rotation under the bye-laws at the
2013 annual general meeting and asses the independence of
the independent non-executive directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporation Governance Committee of the Company
was established on 21 February, 2012. As at the date of
this annual report, the Corporation Governance Committee
comprised of two executive directors, namely Dr. Ng Chi Ho
(Chairman) and Mr. Ma Fung On.

The role and main function of the Corporate Governance
Committee is to assist the Board in developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance which are
applicable to the Group and making recommendations to the
Board.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee include the duties set out in Code Provision D.3.1.
(a) to (e) for the time being in force. The terms of reference
of the Corporate Governance Committee are available on the
website of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting
during the year. The attendance at this meeting is as follows:—

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
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Meeting attended

CEERZEERE HEEHEXH
Dr. Ng Chi Ho REREL 171
Mr. Ma Fung On BERLE 1/1

During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee
reviewed and discussed the new requirements of the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules and reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The
Company made specific enquiry of all directors as to whether
they complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code regarding their securities transactions. It was confirmed
that there was full compliance. The relevant employee
who, because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price sensitive information, have
been requested to comply with the provisions of the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The
finance department of the Company is taken charge by the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Directors ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations
and applicable accounting principles.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Group's independent auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”). The financial reporting responsibilities of the
independent auditors are set out on page 61 to 62 of this
annual report.

During the year, remuneration of approximately
HK$2,455,000 was payable to PwC for the provision of audit
services. In addition, approximately HK$589,000 was payable
to PwC for other non-audit services. The non-audit services
mainly consist of tax compliance and other services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Mr. Huen Po Wah,
a representative from an external secretarial services provider
as the company secretary of the Company. The primary
contact person with the company secretary of the Company is
the chief financial officer, Mr. Lee Yiu Cheung. Mr. Huen has
duly complied with the relevant training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the
Company'’s constitutional documents.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensures
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage the
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Board believed that the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and key areas of the Group’s system of
internal controls are reasonably implemented, which provide
prevention of material misstatement or loss, safeguard the
Group’s assets, maintain appropriate account records and
financial reporting, efficiency of operations and ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulation. The Board
will endeavour its best effort to enhance and improve the
internal controls in all aspects of the Group, and will regularly
monitor the issues raised by the Audit Committee to ensure
appropriate remedial measures have been implemented.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. In order to develop and
maintain continuing relationship with the shareholders of
the Company, the Company established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for
the shareholders of the Company to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board,

publication of announcements and circulars on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,

publication of financial statements containing a
summary of the financial information and affairs of the
Group for the interim and full financial year via the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,

interim reports, annual reports and circulars that are
sent to all shareholders,

notices of and explanatory notes for general meetings,

the management of the Group continually conducts
meetings with investors, analysts and the media, and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive
information regarding the Company’s development and
answers to their queries.

The Company also maintains a website at www.suga.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, financial information and news can always be
found.
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(vi)
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Shareholders and investors may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing through the
contact details as follows:—

Address: 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre,

1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: 2953 1523

Email: investorrelations@suga-electronics.com

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general
meeting and put forward proposals at general meeting. The
procedures are as follows:

(A) PROCEDURES FOR REQUISITIONING A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
such of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, shall
have the right to convene a special general meeting
of the Company. If the directors do not within twenty-
one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
may themselves convene a meeting.

The written requisition for the special general meeting
can be lodged at the Company’s principal office in Hong
Kong at 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang
Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 shareholders may, at their expense, provide
a written request to the attention of the Company
Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for the shareholders to propose a
person for election of a director at an annual general
meeting is available for viewing at the Company’s
website at www.suga.com.hk.

The above procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the
Company and applicable legislation and regulation.

Besides, the updated memorandum of association
and bye-laws of the Company has been posted on
the website of the Company at www.suga.com.hk
and the designated website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk.

(B) RERRAEERE

L 2P

FETDOR -+ o2z —WAERNARA
RABRAE EREZ AR B HRRAR
ZIRR A D PR1004 BCER AT AR I8 B R GE
—NAN—FRRPEA R RWE R ER
ZEMENR BERHABEFATALE-

ERABRRRARXARBRREFARS
F2BEEZRFHARA QA B

www.suga.com.hk

FatiR FRA AR 2 A RARRI R E AR

FOERRFFRIR -

BN R AR 2 E 2 HEE R
a1 9 SN B = == N NN I
www.suga.com.hk X B 22 f7 38 & 49 ub
www.hkexnews.hk °



The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the research and
development, manufacture and sale of electronic products,
moulds and plastic products. Details of the principal activities
of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
reporting and geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 65
of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary share was
paid during the financial year. The Directors have proposed
the payment of a final dividend of HK7.0 cents per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2013. Total dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to HK14.0 cents
per ordinary share.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 8
August 2013 is expected to be paid on or before 22 August
2013 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the Register of Shareholders of the Company on 15
August 2013.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (continued)

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed
for the following periods:

(i)

The Register of Shareholders of the Company will be
closed from, Tuesday, 6 August 2013 to Thursday, 8
August 2013 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share anticipants must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5
August 2013; and

The Register of Shareholders of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 14 August 2013 to Thursday,
15 August 2013 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be qualified for the proposed final dividend, completed
share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
anticipants must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 13 August 2013.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of

the Company during the year are set out in the note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options
of the Company during the year are set out in notes 24 and
25 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2013
calculated under Company Act of Bermuda amounted to
HK$94,716,000 (2012: HK$111,088,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$203,400.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particular of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2013 are set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 184 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven
Mr. Chan Kit Wang

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Dr. Ng Chi Ho
and Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua will retire by rotation
in accordance with Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws.
All the retiring Directors are being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Each of Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a term of one year.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continuea)

Dr. Ng Chi Ho, being Executive Directors of the Company has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 1 September
2002 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other. Mr. Ma Fung On, being Executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 1 April 2004 and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election has a service contract with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Directors consider the share option scheme, with its
broadened basis of participation, will enable the Group
to reward the employees, Directors and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group and will also
assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high
caliber professional’s executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 6 August
2012, the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 17
September 2002 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) was
terminated and cease to have any further effect except that
the Old Share Option Scheme will remain in force to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of the options
granted thereunder prior to termination thereof. A new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted which will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from adoption of the New Share Option Scheme and will
expire on 5 August 2022.

For details of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 5
July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:—

PURPOSE OF THE NEW SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

The Directors consider the New Share Option Scheme
will enable the Group to reward its employees, Directors
and other selected participants for their contributions
to the Group and will also assist the Group in its
recruitment and retention of high calibre professionals,
executives and employees who are instrumental to the
growth of the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Directors (which expression shall, for the purpose
of this Appendix, include a duly authorized committee
thereof) may, at their absolute discretion subject to the
Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants, to take up options to
subscribe for Shares:

(a) any employee (whether full time or part time
including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

WHO MAY JOIN (Continued)

() any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangements to the development and growth of
the Group.

For the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme,
the options may be granted to any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of participants. For the avoidance of
doubt, the grant of any options by the Company for the
subscription of shares or other securities of the Group
to any person who fall within any of the above classes
of participants shall not, by itself, unless the Directors
otherwise determined, be construed as a grant of option
under the New Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the above class of
participants to the grant of any options shall be
determined by the Directors from time to time on the
basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

3.

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE
FOR SUBSCRIPTION

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issue share
capital of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the New Share Option
Scheme was 28,655,400 shares (including 1,426,000
shares subject to options that have been granted but
not yet lapsed or exercised under the Old Share Option
Scheme), which represented 10.52% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH
PARTICIPANT

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any further grant
of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular
to the Shareholders and the Shareholders’ approval in
general meeting of the Company with such participant
and his associates abstaining from voting. The number
and terms (including the exercise price) of the options
to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
Shareholders’ approval and the date of Board meeting
for proposing such further grant should be taken as the
date of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise
price under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing
Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

5.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION
PRICE

The subscription price for Shares under the New
Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’'s daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of an option.

EXERCISE PERIOD OF AN OPTION

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the New Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the
Directors to each grantee, which period may commence
on a day upon which the offer for the grant of options
is made but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the option subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof.

TIME AND PAYMENT ON ACCEPTANCE

An offer of the grant of the option may be accepted by
a participant within 21 days from the date of the offer
of grant of the option and the Option in respect of the
number of shares in respect of which the offer was so
accepted will be deemed to have been granted on the
date of grant of the options.

MINIMUM PERIOD AND PERFORMANCE
TARGETS

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in
the offer of the grant of options to a grantee, a grantee is
not required to hold an option for any minimum period
nor achieve any performance targets before any options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme can be
exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9.

REMAINING LIFE OF THE NEW SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in
general meeting, the New Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective till 5 August 2022. After the expiry
of such valid period, no further options will be offered
or granted but in all other respects the provisions of the
New Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

No share options have been granted under the New
Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 6 August
2012.

Details of the share option movements during the period
from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 under the Old
Share Option Scheme are as follows:—

Number of share options

BRESS (2)
9. IEENRRELTE FssE R

MERE SR EE—_T - —F/\AR
BATA MR EEHRARBRERA
SRR LLRIERIR - XA B A MR fE
g BRI ERIIBRE I
BB 8 2 e A Bt Mm%
BEREARAER-

BER-ZT——F \ANBERME I
EAR BT AR AT B3R () B A

H-ZE——FWA—HE-_ZE—=F=A
—t+—HERERN ERRETEET 2B
RS BFIBUT

BRESE
OQutstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the  at 31 March Exercise
2012 period period period 2013 price Date of grant Exercisable period
B’ ®
ZE-Zf ZE-Zf
mA—H ZA=+-H
i# K AT 1 BT MRt HAEH i K AT TEE b= T
(HK$)
()
Continuous Contract 110,000 - - - 110,000 1.331 29 April 2010 29 April 2010 -
Employees 28 April 2015
BEANEE %% —T-%%
mA=t+hE mMAZ+tNBZE
—E-1f%
mAZt/N\B
Continuous Contract 1,045,000 - - 55,000 990,000 1.145 3June 2010 31 December 2013 -
Employees 3 June 2015
BESNEE —2-%F —E-=F
~NA=R +ZA=+-H%
—T-nf
~A=H
Continuous Contract 432,000 - - 46,000 386,000 1.750 21 October 2011 22 Qctober 2014 -
Employees 21 October 2016
BEANES —T——F ZT-DE
+A=+—-8 +A=+=BZ%
—E-RE
+A-t+-8
1,587,000 - - 101,000 1,486,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BIRESE (2
9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE NEW SHARE 9. MBS EIZ RIeRFH (&)
OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
Details of the share option movements during the period -2 =—FNA—H&z-F—=%FA
from 1 April 2013 to 25 June 2013 under the Old Share “tTHBHEA EERESEIET 2B
Option Scheme are as follows:— REEEFBFRT
Number of share options
BRESE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the  at 25 June Exercise
2013 period period period 2013 price Date of grant Exercisable period
—F-Z% —F5-=Z%
mE-A AAZ+IA
iR ITEE HREH BRiTE BRER i# AT fTEE RHAH fTEH
(HK$)
()
Continuous Contract 110,000 - - - 110,000 1.331 29 April 2010 29 April 2010 -
Employees 28 April 2015
SEANEE “E-%E ZT-TF
Zt+AhH MAZtHhEBEE
—T-0%
MA=+\H
Continuous Contract 990,000 - - - 990,000 1.145 3June 2010 31 December 2013 -
Employees 3 June 2015
SEANEE —E_Ef —s-cf
~NAZH +-A=+—H%
—T-1%¥
~NA=H 53
Continuous Contract 386,000 - - 60,000 326,000 1.750 21 October 2011 22 October 2014 -
Employees 21 October 2016 N
FRANES —FF —E-mF =f
tA=+-8  fA=fzBE o~
—Z- /\i ‘Cﬁ):f
TAZ+-H i

1,486,000 - - 60,000 1,426,000
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Report of the Directors
ExgnE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and the short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which are required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such positions of the SFO) or which are required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:—

EERRhZzESR

F E-—=ZF=-A=1t—H ARAEERAK
NE R EEEEEE (EE RS LG K
01 (TE % R B G GE)]) EXVED) 2 Bt - 18-

feth REHF A REE S R E R EXV
METRBDEREAMEARANBEHRER

SEBERAR ([BRAT]) 2w kAR (BiE
BEESEBHEGRINEBEEXFEEFHRIELE
VER B 2 Em MR R )  HARLRAREEFH K& H
BEIEBIEBGTFEZERM 2 ERT AR
SIRBE LT AREFETESFR HMWIELESTA|
([TZEESFRI]) ARG ARNQN R MR T2 #m &
KRBT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES EENBEWNZER (&)
(Continued)
LONG POSITION o

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the AR ZzZBROREBERM ZER
Company

(a) Interests in shares of the Company (@) RIEARNEIRGD.Z #Ezm

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

BREEIERTZEEREE
Number of
underlying
Percentage of shares held
Number of Total issued ordinary  under equity
Name of Director Capacity shares interests shares derivatives
B&fT BRAMTEIR
LER BETHEHAR
Y a9 BHEE ESas ERae BHEE
(Note 1)
(BzE 1)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Beneficial owner 6,930,000 160,578,000 58.97% -
REFMEL ExBEAA
Interests of controlled 43,648,000 - - -
corporation (Note 2)
XEEEER (Ki3F2)
Founder of a 110,000,000 - - -
discretionary trust (Note 3)
RHREERAINE (M3E3) 35
Mr. Ma Fung On Beneficial owner 4,323,000 14,223,000 5.22% -
BEREE EREEA N
Interests of controlled 9,900,000 - - - S5
corporation (Note 4) 5
REEERS (Pt5E4) Sl
Mr. Lee Kam Hung Beneficial owner 1,949,200 3,883,000 1.43% - g
THELE EREEA
Interests of controlled 1,933,800 - - -
corporation (Note 5)
REEEER (PB+3E5)
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua Beneficial owner 220,000 220,000 0.08% -
BRSURE ExBEAA
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven Beneficial owner 330,000 330,000 0.12% -

RFHAE EaG#BA
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EERRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
(Continued)

LONG POSITION (Continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

(a)

Interests in shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1.

These represent the interests in underlying shares in
respect of the share opinions granted by the Company, the
details of which are set out in the sub-section “Share Option
Scheme”.

43,648,000 shares are held by Billion Linkage Limited, the
entire issued shares of which is held by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and
his spouse in equal share.

110,000,000 Shares are held by Superior View Inc.,
the entire issued shares of which is ultimately held by
Fidelitycorp Limited as the trustee of the C.H. Family Trust,
the beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng
Chi Ho.

9,900,000 Shares are held by Global Class Enterprises
Limited, the entire issued shares of which is held by Mr. Ma
Fung On.

1,933,800 shares are held by Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd, the
ultimate shareholder is Mr. Lee Kam Hung.

EERNBMZER &)

R (%)

ApRlzRRRBERBRNZEE (&)

@ RERFRDZ#am (&)

B3

1.

BRI AR R R PR L BB & 2 48
BRI s AR ISE [ st &)

INEE

77 BR e

#43,648,000% I% {7 B Billion Linkage
Limited#5 74 + %A Al 2 EPE 1T Al
REXETHER  EBSFE—F-

#110,000,0000% % 15 €5 Superior View Inc.
BE mMZzra2deBTROoBER
C.H.Ri&{E7E = 7 A ZFidelitycorp Limited
BERBE  ZEAZZaARREBRE L
EN=E

9,900,000 & 17 R Global Class
Enterprises Limited#54 * Mz AR 23 E 8
TIRHAIAFBEREERE -

#1,933,800/% 1% {7 B3 Quick Fit Enterprises
Ldi5hH  FIRIE ST ERZ AR SRR



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
(Continued)

LONG POSITION (Continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (Continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated
corporation
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in Suga
Electronics Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Report of the Directors
EEERE

EENBEWNZER (&)
1R ()
ANAZHRNRIBEABRG Z S (2)

(b) RARAIEHZER G 2 # e

RARBZEMBARGEEEFARAA
BAEEL0E T 2 B EEELERD

Company:
Number of
Non-voting
deferred Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares (Note 1) issued shares
ERmEE 2T
EEnA g4 (FfF5EL) B E T
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Interests of controlled corporation 3,680,000 92%
(Note 2)
REREL AR ER (Mf5E2)
Mr. Ma Fung On Interests of controlled corporation 240,000 6%
(Note 2)
BEREE REEEER (MFsE2)
Notes: M sE 57
1. These non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, 1. % SN ERR R () B E N EUR
are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to B BB DATEBREAEACDES RS
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of % 3/ A% 10,000,000,00058 JT 18 » 2 S &K

HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary shares has been
distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

2. The 4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares in Suga
Electronics Limited are held as to 80% by Essential Mix
Enterprises Limited and 20% by Broadway Business
Limited. Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On hold 92% and
6% interests in each of Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
and Broadway Business Limited respectively.

Save as disclosed above and under the “Share Option
Scheme”, none of the Directors of the Company have any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO as at 31 March 2013.

SRBEERMDFBAADAEDIR-

B E1/2102

2. 4,000,000k ZEEFTERAREBRER
JEFE B 15 5 Bl A Essential Mix Enterprises
Limited &2 Broadway Business Limited# &
80%N20% - REZE LT RHEREES
B 9 Bl Essential Mix Enterprises Limited &
Broadway Business Limited$ 592% &6%
Heas o

B EX R [BhkiEsta | BTHEEN R-F
—=F=A=1t—B ARREEFHUERER
AN HARESEE (& RESLBEERD) 2 Ik
- HBERD REFFHEA TAES AR -
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Report of the Directors
ExgnE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no such competing
business as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, the following persons (not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

EERGAIZHESR

NN B E A P 0 AR S AT By
DABRMBANEEXRGEERZ A ARAHHE
MEBAR IR NI ZAKNT BERAEERES
(ERCIEPAN:

EENHRRBCER

EEZRR UELABEMAR

FARGBRRA
wa EmREI ([ iR E‘JJ )5‘1

Rﬁfﬁ%i‘k

FERRE

NZE—=F=A=+—H RARFRRESR
LB RN E336IGFE 2 EMATaisk - T
FIAL (WIERRREETRFBZITHAR)RAR
RElz B RAERD S EEABRBEESF R
HAE GBI EXVEBE2 X35 BB E M A A A &
ZRERIORE

Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of shares issued shares
23T

Ha 28 545 e B B#HESE

Superior View Inc. (Note 1) (FfzE1) Beneficial owner 110,000,000 40.40%
En#EB A

Billion Linkage Limited (Note 2) (Ff5¥2) Beneficial owner 43,648,000 16.03%
Em#EB A

Notes: P 5E -

1. The entire issued share capital of Superior View Inc. is ultimately 1. Superior View Inc. & ZE BT D RIEAC.H Xk

held by Fidelitycorp Limited as trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the
beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

2. The entire issued share capital of Billion Linkage Limited is held
by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse in equal shares and, as such,
Dr. Ng Chi Ho is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Billion Linkage Limited under the SFO.

{55 55 A Z Fidelitycorp Limited 48455 - %12
ACZBAABRERELZRE-

2. Billion Linkage Limited = &#fE &7 A R B X E
THRFZEBEME % BREES RAEKH -
R A =8+ 18 A ABillion Linkage Limited Fr#F
BB Z =



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continuea)

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the Directors,
there is no person, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, who has an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provision 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2013.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 15.2% of the Group’s total revenue and the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 64.4% of
the Group’s total revenue. In addition, the largest supplier of
the Group accounted for approximately 11.0% of the Group’s
purchases while the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 18.8% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 March 2013, the Company was not involved in any
material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or
arbitration were pending or threatened or made against the
Company so far the Company is aware.

Report of the Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 29 to 42.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offered themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Suga International Holdings Limited
NG Chi Ho

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUGA INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to
183, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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(REFRZEZME L FRLF])

AAZEED (A S RERE [HF9)) ERET IR F
632 183AEEBEREEBR AR (AT EHE
[ERF]) REFAR (5 [E5E ) WEE
MBBHRE WSS BERREER_F—=F
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Balance Shgets
BEBER
As at 31 March 2013 RZZ—=F=A=+—H
Group Company
AEME VNN
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F-=f C—E——fF ZE-=Zf CZ—E-—=F
=Z=B=+—-8 =A=t—H =ZBA=+—-H =A=1+—H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B 3 F#ET FHET F#ET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment #7% « BE & & 6 117,366 116,678 - =
Land use rights T e 7 60,798 4,159 - =
Intangible asset BYEE 8 21,046 = - =
Goodwill e 9 3,949 1,059 - -
Investments in subsidiaries ~ R B R A ZIXE 10 - - 66,139 65,974
Interests in associates i NI e 11 1,868 1,733 - -
Interest in a jointly controlled 7 — &l 2£ R 4%
entity B ER 12 - = - =
Amount due from an associate J& U B & A 718 11 267 267 - =
Long-term loan receivable REE B EIR 18 16,575 16,250 - -
Available-for-sale financial asset AJ it HH & Bt #% & 7= 13 4,323 2,679 - -
Financial assets at fair value & A F{EF A
through profit or loss BR WK EE 14 1,279 6,993 - -
Bonds investments BEHERE 15 7,711 9,109 - =
Deferred income tax assets ~ EEFTSH B E 23 3,524 3,665 - =
Other non-current receivables EfhIEmBEKZIE 18 3,875 - - -
242,581 162,592 66,139 65,974
Current assets  =@&E&E
Inventories FE 17 132,252 160,230 - -
Trade and other receivables  fEUE 5 B8R 7 &%
H fth FEU IR 18 126,582 156,417 313 249
Financial assets at fair value  #ZAFERZA 63
through profit or loss BamsWBEE 14 6,553 7,762 - =
Bonds investments BEHEE 15 1,428 5,165 - = o
Tax recoverable A Y [al 7 18 2,407 400 118 118 =1
Amounts due from subsidiaries &g Fff & X 7 7118 10 - = 114,054 137,832 g
Amount due from a jointly i W — R w
controlled entity EEHE 12 - 30,083 - - il
Derivative financial instruments T4 £ & T A 19 696 853 - = g
Cash and cash equivalents  JR&NEESEY 20 243,625 143,959 7,903 413
513,543 504,869 122,388 138,612
Total assets EEHE 756,124 667,461 188,527 204,586
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank borrowings BITIEE 22 85,532 22,463 - =
Other non-current liabilities ~ HA3ERE A & 21 17,595 - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities  #EZEFTS % & & 23 5,759 2,807 - =
108,886 25,270 - -
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Balance Sheets
EEAER

As at 31 March 2013

RZE—=F=A=+—8H

Group Company
rE b /N
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=f T ZF-Zf —T——-F
=Z=B=+—-8B =A=t—H ZA=+—-H =A=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt E F#HET FHATT F#HET FATT
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ERE SRR K
H it JE T FRIB 21 146,722 179,872 2,391 2,242
Income tax payable [ ETS R 10,885 15,737 - =
Bank borrowings BITEE 22 16,927 9,376 - -
174,534 204,985 2,391 2,242
Total liabilities =Rt 283,420 230,255 2,391 2,242
EQUITY # =
Capital and reserves attributable 5% B AN A AIHEH A
to the owners of the Company 2 B 7R &%
Share capital N 24 27,229 27,229 27,229 27,229
Other reserves Hoth 26 119,834 115,499 129,063 128,899
Retained earnings REB A 26
— Proposed dividend — R & 19,061 27,229 19,061 27,229
— Others —Hfb 307,134 267,415 10,783 18,987
473,258 437,372 186,136 202,344
Non-controlling interests FE2E I 15 7 25 (554) (166) - -
Total equity S EHR 472,704 437,206 186,136 202,344
Total equity and liabilities H#&ER &EEE 756,124 667,461 188,527 204,586
Net current assets mENEEFE 339,009 299,884 119,997 136,370
Total assets less current EEGER
liabilities REHaE 581,590 462,476 186,136 202,344
Director Director
o s

The notes on pages 70 to 183 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

A & N
,Z\vT\ = H m
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE
2013 2012
—F-=f —T—_F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T#ExT FB7T
Revenue g 27 1,107,488 1,241,997
Cost of sales SHE KA 30 (960,599) (1,076,720)
Gross profit EF 146,889 165,277
Other income E U A 28 692 1,586
Other gains, net E s - JHRE 29 17,595 4,034
Distribution and selling expenses DiHRIHEEA 30 (17,116) (14,005)
General and administrative expenses —#& & 1TH & IR & 30 (66,254) (56,930)
Operating profit 48 | 81,806 99,962
Finance income ELEET PN 31 4,301 3,224
Finance costs BbE K A 31 (2,425) (1,343)
Finance income — net BhE WA —FEE 31 1,876 1,881
Share of loss of associate JEfH B = A R ES 1B (865) -
Profit before income tax B AT 15 25 A& A 82,817 101,843
Income tax expense FriS R 2 32 (5,364) (8,757)
Profit for the year F Wi F 77,453 93,086
Attributable to: EERN:
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A 33 77,841 93,252
Non-controlling interests FE M R (388) (166) 65
77,453 93,086
S
Earnings per share for profit FANEBARRTEA A o
attributable to the owners of the JE A g ) ) B i &2 F) m
Company during the year -
e
— Basic (HK cents) — &R (B 34 28.59 34.26
— Diluted (HK cents) —#58 (OB) 34 28.54 34.18
Dividends f% 2 35 38,122 46,290

The notes on pages 70 to 183 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

F70£183B 2 ME /AP BREKR—ED
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Consolldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e 2 ERAK

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—EF—=fF —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 F#HxT F#ET
Profit for the year FEWiEF 77,453 93,086
Other comprehensive income: Hit = mEUA:
Exchange differences arising on MEGINKT B A BB Sk
translation of foreign subsidiaries FTEAE X =58 2,527 4,995
Exchange reserve released upon 7B SR AT B A R
disposal of a foreign subsidiary B E SRS - (430)
Fair value gain/(loss) on T HENBEEER
an available-for-sale financial asset A EUZ (EE) 1,644 (275)
Other comprehensive income for FAHMEERA
the year, net of tax R FIE 4,171 4290
Total comprehensive income for FRNEHEUIT N
the year 81,624 97,376
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEEZZ N 82,012 97,542
Non-controlling interests FE ) 1 (388) (166)
81,624 97,376
The notes on pages 70 to 183 are an integral part of these 702 183B Z MitE B4r A M IEHRER —2 5 °

consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Changes in %)Bjity
A\ Filb =< #5254 %%

I\
/i\\/T\ £ fm &<
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

. NSE 2PN
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling
capital reserves earnings interests Total
B & Hithfk s REBEN FEfIER bl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET S TEL T
Balance at 1 April 2011 RZFE——&
MA—Rz&& 27,174 110,764 264,020 - 401,958
Profit/(loss) for the year ERER/ (BE) = = 93,252 (166) 93,086
Exchange difference arising on BMEFINTE A
translation of foreign subsidiaries ~ FTE4ERZE = 4,995 = = 4,995
Exchange reserve released upon A HEZINIE A RIFs
disposal of a foreign subsidiary BE LR - (430) - - (430)
Fair value loss on an available-for-sale A it & MK EE 2
financial asset AFEEE - (275) - - (275)
Total comprehensive income EHBNEHE = 4,290 93,252 (166) 97,376
Transactions with owners: HBEBAZENZS:
Employee share option scheme: EEERETE:
Value of employee services EERKZEE = 125 = = 125
Proceeds from shares issued upon ~ f7{E BB A% i 4 17
exercise of options W13 2 {5 5008 55 320 = = 375
Dividends paid [RYE5E - - (62,628) - (62,628)
Balance at 31 March 2012 RZBE-—Z4%
=R=t—-Hz&®% 27,229 115,499 294,644 (166) 437,206
Bttt i T T TTTT TS T T oo o oo oo 67
Profit/(loss) for the year FERER,/ (BE) - - 77,841 (388) 77,453
Exchange difference arising on BEEIIHBAR
translation of foreign subsidiaries FTEAER =5 = 2,527 - = 2,527 =t
. =
Fair value gain on an available-for-sale A/t HEBEE 2 )
financial asset ATEYR - 1,644 - - 1,644 %
Total comprehensive income EALON L - 4,171 77,841 (388) 81,624 By
Transactions with owners: HBEFAZENR S
Employee share option scheme: EEERETE:
Value of employee services EERBEZEE = 164 = = 164
Dividends paid Bk E = - (46,290) = (46,290)
Balance at 31 March 2013 RIE—Z=%
ZRAZ+-Hz&H 27,229 119,834 326,195 (554) 472,704

The notes on pages 70 to 183 are an integral part of these ~ $£70Z21838 v MiE RirE MKz —3 5 -
consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
;\\/\ Eﬁi/ﬂbiﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—_E—=F —F—=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FExT FET
Cash flows from operating activities JXEEHZHRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEBEE RS 37 121,390 104,636
Interest paid ERFE (2,425) (1,343)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEEFEH (11,380) (9,540)
Mainland Chinese corporate BB EMEH
income tax paid (2,152) (2,802)
Net cash generated from operating &EEKEALAZR G IF5E
activities 105,433 90,951
Cash flows from investing activities REFHZHERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE WEIEE
equipment (14,883) (15,821)
Purchase of land use rights A T AR (53,767) -
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  MEMEEZ
plant and equipment Fr{S5k38 37 24 =
Deposits received from disposals of & +ith 7 B Uiz &
land 17,595 -
Retirement/(purchase) of financial e (BA)EATE
assets at fair value through profitor ~ EEABRZ M BEEE
loss 7,762 (3,686)
Retirement of bonds investments WEEERE 5,163 =
Increase in long-term loan receivable & 83 & 2% /& Ug R IA 1 N - (16,250)
Increase in interest in associates NN TZ@’\i'jJD (1,000) (1,733)
Increase in amount due from JE Wi Bk & B FRIE 32 AN
> [ an associated company - (267)
B SC Interest received [ &IPS 4,301 3,224
S 5% Acquisition of remaining equity WHEHREH EE 2
== interest of jointly controlled entity, BTN AR HE
3 8;‘1 net of cash acquired M lERe 41 3,302 —
§ %g Net cash used in investing activities & & /EBPTA 2R & F58 (31,503) (34,533)
]
m
W U%
g
—




Consolidated Cash‘ Flow Statement
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—_E—-=F —=F—=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHT
Cash flows from financing activities BiZEFEIZRERE
Proceeds from issuance of shares TEEREREITRGD 2
upon exercise of share options F{S 3K38 - 375
Proceeds from long-term bank loans & EIR{TE TS KIE 185,000 =
Repayment of long-term bank loans (& RHEISRITE X (114,380) (11,023)
Decrease in trust receipts bank loans {S3EZE 4R 1TE ZOR - (3,392)
Dividends paid ERE (46,290) (62,628)
Net cash generated from/(used in) FAZEEFEBERE,(FFH)Z
financing activities HEEH 24,330 (76,668)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ¥4 RIS ZEY
cash equivalents #m, CRd) FEE 98,260 (20,250)
Effect of changes in foreign (ERE T E
exchange rates 1,406 3,060
Cash and cash equivalents, RERBRESEEY  F1
beginning of year 143,959 161,149
Cash and cash equivalents, RELREFEY FR
end of year 243,625 143,959

The notes on pages 70 to 183 are an integral part of these FT0E18BBE 2 MFT RirE I IFHmEK —F 7 ©
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 755 R R I

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in Bermuda on 28 September 2001.
The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 September 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together, “the
Group”) are principally engaged in the research and
development, manufacturing and sales of electronic
products, moulds and plastic products. The Group has
operations mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao.

The address of the Company’s registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
These financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis and principal accounting policies applied
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied for all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

—RER

EEEREEERAR ([RARAF])R =
EE—FNAA-TN\BEBREZMKL
RERRCERAR -ARFRERNHBE -FTT
“FANATN\BREETEHMARZAER
N ([BEFT]) Eme

/NI B g k2l @/NCTERN/NCI DY @4
BRR (G AEE|)IT2REFETE
mRANPBERAELFAE HER
HEXB AKRBEBEEUREL F
B8 R SR P o

KA R 2 EM =R Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

BRRBERIN GEMBERRAETRE
25 - R_FE—=F"A-_+THRA &
ERHETEZEMBHRE -

MRBEEREEEHHRBE

RAENEEAMBHRRARAZERTR
SAFBRHINANT R B AEREIN I
ERRNIBEERFEHERER -



Notes to the Financial Statementg
W ISR M o
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 MUEBREREEEHREBE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 REEE

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
inclusion at fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

(a) The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the Group’s financial year
beginning on 1 April 2012. The adoption
of these amendments to standards has not
had any significant impact to the results and
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and
(Amendment) Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of

(Amendment) Financial Assets
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
(Amendment) Underlying Assets

REEHGREMBERRIRIBEEEM
BmEER ([BEMBHREER])
HREL - L FH iR A M MR IR IRE LK
REREREL At AR &R
BEERBRAFELABGKRZM
BKEERMBAE (BRTESRT
B) ZRFEM T IAMERT

RIEFBM B RS EN R B R
RABRETRRE A EEE
RERASE S BRE TAEL
HUVER o 3 K 20 [ ) B Sl A AE e 2 6
BAR S REGRAMBHREBEAN
Z AR Kt 5t 2 E 0 7O P FE A B

(@ ATNERAEITNRAEE -F
——FHA—-BRBZHMEF
JZ 58 I & - SR % TR B
FIHAEE 2 AR BRI
WEERERTE -

BERBHE BERBRNER
EHIF1R REREEE
SCHEN) &

BREMBRE BEIMBEEEY
ERIETH
SCHEN)

BEES EEHR : AR
ERIE125% BE
SCHEN)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B F5 TR R BT 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 WMEBEREEGHHRBE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (%)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 RBEEE(£)

(b) The following new standards, amendments (b) LATETZEREAHESET hZE
to standards and interpretation have been EEMERZE—Z-FMHA—
issued but are not effective for the financial AR ERFE ERER
year beginning on 1 April 2012 and have not BAEEWEEFHN:

been early adopted by the Group:

Effective for the
accounting period
beginning on or after
BRARUTHBASR
ZERABRMEHARE

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Items of Other 1 July 2012
Comprehensive Income
BB G ERIE1R Htm2EEBAER 2275 —ET-——_F+HA—H
(BRI )
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
BB G ERIE195% EERA —E—=%—H—H
(Z2——%F)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
BB G ERIE275% EAVALIR e —E—=%—H—H
(ZF——%F)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint 1 January 2013
Ventures
>[I R G ERIFE 285 REFERRIREERRINRE —ET—=F—H—H
S oC (ZF——%)
§ 52 HKAS 32 (Amendment) Offsetting Financial Assets and 1 January 2014
3 GE)E Financial Liabilities
S 7= ER G ERIFE32% MGEE NV EENEREH —ET—MmMFE—-H—H
g%@ (83T A)
E :|3_>| HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Government Loans 1 January 2013
ol EEMBREENEIR  BHER —E-=%—H—H
> CEHEN),
T HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets 1 January 2013

and Financial Liabilities
BEAMBHMEENETR BR-YVBEERYBAEMNEMRKE —T—=F—H—H
SEHEN)




Notes to the Financial Statements

BTG R M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BZE_ZT—=F=A=+—HItFE
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 MEBEREEGHBRBE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (#)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 mEBEE (&)
(b) (Continued) b) (&)
Effective for the
accounting period
beginning on or after
HRARUTBH®
ZERBNEEEE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015
ERMBHRELAESR S@MIA —T-—hF—H—H
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
BEYBMEEREION HFEPBREK —ET—=%—H—H
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
BEMBmEERELIR BETH —ET-=F—H—H
HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
ERENBRELNFEI2R REMEBERNEE —ET—=%—H—H
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
ERMBHRELENFEIR AFEFTE —ET—=F—H—H
HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production 1 January 2013
Phase of a Surface Mine
55 (BEBRVBEREZRE BRESEEHORKRKR —ET—=%—H—H
ZEg) REBF20%R
HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
BB HREER FELEER (ZZETNEFE —ET—=F—H—H 73
SEHEN —T——FER)
N
Management is in the process of making an EEEREFEZEEHN LR %
assessment of the likely impact of these changes 2 fEHREREETEEERAEE 5
but is not yet in a position to state whether any E’JEEA%B@ﬁ&/_}ZﬁEM‘%ﬁ% B
substantial changes to the Group’s significant B 1) 3 3R (] 8 K =

accounting policies and/or the presentation of its
financial statements will result.
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Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

MAUBEEREEEBRBE
(#)

2.2 #rEERE
(a) MIB2A

MEBAREAERAEEIEE
R REEBRMIES A
ER(BREFINENER)
— MR R BUIRERE 2R
H-EFEAEERTIES S
— B BRI TEXA] K
By BEREENTERZE
B F & & o i B A B 1R 12l #E
BEEAEE HEEEHFA
R-MBAREZEFIERIEZ
BRELEEHAR-

AEEERKEGTEHESR
& OF A BR - U BB P B 1 B P
BMZRENFEREE IE
ERERAEEMRMEITHREZ
AFE-FFERZAERRE
SBERERBABZEFNEE
FRBEZRAFE-BKERE
ZRARELERH -XBE
OB 7] 2% 5 2 P U P B 2 e P
EEREMIABENFRK
BREZAFENE - BLE R
WEE%E KB MRAFE
ok 1% IR 4 1 M 4 s FE 1 1R
HEHRFEERR SN
1] FER AR UL 77 O IE 2 1

e
MEZS o



Notes to the Financial Statementg
W ISR M
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 MUEBREREEEHREE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued) 22 REEB (&)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MBLAE (&)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference
between the fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

i 75 & 6 0 B B 17 - AR
BB E ZREE 2K
BRWBARZREESEN
AERRBERERZATE:
BREMtEMEL 2K
SRR IR TR

AEEKEZNEARERE
R BB R ERER -
BREERABNHARER
FENHRZEH REFES
FHERIEINR MR E  EIE
Rk VR 2R E A 2 T K R RO B B
RN BEAEAENNANRE
TEHFIE H2BENGEE
AR

7R 6% [8) 4 L B IR 2 ) 1 A 2
T TEHREEHENRS
ARBERR 5 —BEEE A
NEERBEBASNETHX
Z X MERRENAFE
B2 AR B FE 1 PR BB BT BB 12 A%
BEREENEZRCESE
moMIFEEHIMERNEE N
BB TN CERE P o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA 7% R MY o

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated but considered
an indicator of an impairment of the asset
transferred. The financial statements of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the company on the basis
of dividend received and receivable.

MAUBEEREEEBRBE
(#)

22 BB (&)

(@) MIBAR (&)
EAKETBRHAEHE &
ERNEARBERN KSR
HEERENITEZEAFE"
FREENZES RSP ER-
R ERRREERHREA
BRI = MR R EE  (E /AR
ERA RERRIRIBEE -
BoN ZAIR ERAEE LR
D Ui 25 A B AR O (1) SRR I 4
AEBEEREEMRBEEN
BE-EEREZFZAMAEEME
m s ERNBEEH OB

EBme

SBARRRZIRF R Rk
SERARRERZHZARERE
BT AEH RBEREBITT
DA 5 tERIFE B R EE R
BzHEZR - MERRZWBER
RERFTEIELE 0 AFELR
EASERMRAZETERE
Wm—2

(b) BIMAF®HE
B 1 B R IR B AR R R (B
SRR -ATBRERENEE
BEAA-MEARMNEER
AR ERE WK WA B A
BE o



Notes to the Financial Statemerjtg
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 WMEBEREEGHERBE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (#&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(b) Separate financial statements

22 #FAkkE (&)
(b) BIMBHRE (&

(c)

(Continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

(c)
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Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continuead)

(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent
to share of profit/(loss) of an associate in the
consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
The financial statements of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associates are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 WMERBEEREEESFHBRBE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (#&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued) 22 #H=ekB (#8)

(d) Jointly controlled entity (d) LREEHEE

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in
which the Group and other parties undertake
an economic activity which is subject to joint
control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic
activity.

The Group’s interest in a jointly controlled
entity is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and is initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s share
of its jointly controlled entities’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in the jointly controlled
entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its jointly controlled entity
is eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in a jointly controlled entity.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. The
financial statements of jointly controlled
entities have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.3

2.4

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
Executive Directors collectively who make strategic
decisions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(@) Functional and presentation
currency

[tems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 WEEEREEGHBRME
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (%)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

(c) Group companies (c) EEETLAH

24 SNEBmE (&)

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) —all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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B RS R R BT 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 REREREEEHBRME
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (4)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 25 W% BERRE

Leasehold land interests classified as finance
leases and all other property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged
to the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land whereas classified as finance
leases commence amortisation from the time
when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation of
other assets are calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate costs less residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land whereas classified 38 years
as finance leases

Buildings 35-40 years

Leasehold improvements 5-10 years

Plant and machinery 5 years

Furniture and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).
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B F R M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 WMEBREREEEHBRBE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (#&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 25 ME - -WE KK (&)
(Continued)
Gains and losses on disposals are determined & 2 B iR L B P 15 SOIA B BR T
by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts BET RNEaRERANER -
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
Construction in progress is stated at cost less T TIE Ty AR A 1Bk 25T E1E 3
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes all R-KABEMAKREES SERE
attributable costs of bringing the asset to working FlEARRE Z EAE AN - It B IR Bl 2
condition for its intended use. This includes direct BEEKAERREZLZEHEARTE
costs of construction as well as interest expense K2 F B - & e P Bl E)
capitalised during the period of construction and B EE S EERTERER  ZEK
installation. Capitalisation of these costs will cease RZEBEREEEKRIE  WiGHERTE
and the construction in progress is transferred #EaYE - WEMEE 2 EEER -
to appropriate categories within property, plant FEREIEDHERTE
and equipment when the construction activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress.
2.6 LAND USE RIGHTS 2.6 THifF R
Land use rights are stated at cost less = b {65 P ¥ X AN O 25 R AT B K
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. BEETESBR - i R E &R
Land use rights are amortised using the straight- B - b (50 A A G BR R 8 o
line method over the period of the land use rights.
2.7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 27 BREEE
Contractual customer relationship acquired in a NEBEHPRBE 2 EHOEFBE
business combination is recognised at fair value Ty iE B BRIR AP ERER - 8 R
at the acquisition date. The contractual customer FaEE B B E A A F H R
relationship has a finite useful life and is carried at R R FTEE ST AR - HIH VIR R P
cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation BB FHRAESEARFR
is calculated using the straight-line method of &o 83
five years over the expected life of the customer
relationship.
o
2.8 GOODWILL 2.8 B N
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of REEEREKAEEANEERN S @
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s =R:Y G NG I W il
share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired a/ HEEGIER A H A EFE g
subsidiary/associates/jointly controlled entity at NEEEZ5 - WEMBARIFEL
the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions BERGEEEABERADHZ
of subsidiaries is separately presented on Wat ABFEE o Jighi e A a3t
consolidated balance sheet included in intangible B 12 5l 28 2 BB 5T ARNEE = QA
assets. Goodwill on acquisition of an associate or HHRIIEFI B 2 IRE  BILFERZ
jointly controlled entity is included in investment in BE B e B H RE &IRE AR 2 &
an associate or jointly controlled entity. Separately BEBEYER mEOREBETE
recognised goodwill is tested for impairment and RO - HEEREAZEaBREEN
carried at cost less accumulated impairment ERAEmE s RAEE

losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount of non-controlling interest and acquisition-
date fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest (if any) over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose identified according to
operating segment (Note 2.3).

IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY, AND THE
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested at least annually for impairment.
Otherwise, assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(1)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets
in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which
are classified as non-current assets.
Loans and receivables comprise
trade and other receivables, bonds
investments and amount due from a
jointly controlled entity and cash and
cash equivalents in the balance sheets
(Note 2.12 and 2.13).

2 WREEREZEFHRME

210 IS EE

() ¥
AEBIZATEF BB EE
DEAE EAFEZAERNU
N B 7R % e U FR T8 DA K AT
EIEE - D EDEURREBAY
BEEBNME -BEERNY
THERANEEUN B EESH-

(i)

(i)

B FECA R Z
BAFELABR Y
BEERFRIEEENH
BE-HMBAZEZAN
RREHRNEE MKE
EASIR L R B 5 48 - BR 3F
EEEERAE TR
ETANDBEARREREER-
WA AR+ @A R
XA EEEIERE
BE BASERERBE
ZEo

EHRIEKFTE

B e ks A E B
0] W E < SRER T A 4B R
BHISHMEZIEITEN
BEE DRRBEEA
R BRREEREBHBI2
@A EIHE  BIZIEIER
BEE-RNEEAEBEXR"
ERREWRESEARE
W B 5 B 3k R H b i U 3R
BEBEERE ERLR
EHEREREBUARRE R
ReFEY (MiF2.12k
2.13) °

85

8 HET/2102




bl T
-
P —
S @)
S 2
N
=
- —
ool
)

TYNOILYNHILINI YONS

Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the
end of the reporting period.

(b) Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date
— the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 RAEBERBEEEFHHREE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (%)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
(b) Recognition and measurement

210 B EE (4)
(b) HEREFE (#)

(Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income
statement.

DERAHEEZEERIEE
KRS N FEES N EM
EERARRER

ENRRAHEENESEH
SR B R - R T R R
SR EAREIAGE WER
o

(c) Offsetting financial instruments (c) HEHEEMI A
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and EREEAMITEAOAEIED
the net amount is reported in the balance ERERE jfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ
sheet when there is a legally enforceable EEH R EREEMG
right to offset the recognised amounts and B ER Eﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁ—fﬁ
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, BRE TEEEEBBRTE
or realise the asset and settle the liability HFEo
simultaneously.

(d) Impairment of financial assets (d) MBHEERE

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are recognised only
if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
BT ER R M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.10 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The asset's carrying
amount is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the reversal of the previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For equity
investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
the separate consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the
separate consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the separate consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIR5RA IR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTG R I 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

BORROWING COSTS

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.17

2.18

BORROWING COSTS (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company, its
subsidiaries, its jointly controlled entity and its
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR M5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 WEEBEEREEGHBRME
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX 2.18 BIEARIRFEFTISHE (48)

(Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a jointly controlled entity, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TR R M5 E
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 REREREEEHHBRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(@) Pension obligations

2.19 EERF
(a) Bh&SEHE

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution pension schemes for its
employees. The pension plans are funded
by payments from employees and by
the Group. The Group’s contributions to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
expensed as incurred. The assets are
held separately from those of the Group
and managed by related independent
professional fund managers.

For employees in Mainland China, the Group
contributes on a monthly basis to various
defined contribution retirement benefit
plans organised by relevant municipal
and provincial governments based on
specified percentages of the relevant
employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal
and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees
under these plans and the Group has
no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BT ER R M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(@) Pension obligations (Continued)

For employees in Macao, the Group
contributes to a defined contribution
retirement plan organised by the Macao
government based on the amount as
stipulated by the relevant rules and
regulations. The Macao government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired
employees under the retirement plan and
the Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions
made. Contributions to this plan are
expensed as incurred.

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which
the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

i) including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

i) excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

iii) including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

gy N
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 MEREREEEHBRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT (%)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.19 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation

219 EBEF (4%)
(b) Bt 1 ZEREN (4%)

(Continued)

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In
addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant
date.

At the end of each reporting period, the
group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the
company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investments in subsidiaries
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ARGk I 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employees’ entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(d) Other benefits

Other directors’ and employees’ obligations
are recorded as a liability and charged to
the consolidated income statement when
the Group is contractually obliged or when
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations is small.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

MRBEEREEEHRBE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.20

2.21

2.22

PROVISIONS (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2 MAUBREREEESTHREE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued) 222 WS MER (#&)
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The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The group manufactures and sells a range
of electronic, moulds and plastic products
in the wholesale market. Sales of goods
are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products, the
amount of sales can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entities.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans
is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.23 LEASES

(@)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor), including upfront payment made
for leasehold land and land use rights,
are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance lease balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in current
and non-current borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ARGk I 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)

2.24

2.25

2.26

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance
contract) is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise
liabilities for financial guarantee at inception, but
performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting
date by comparing its net liability regarding the
financial guarantee with the amount that would
be required if the financial guarantee would result
in a present legal or constructive obligation. If the
liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
immediately.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value on the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair values. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedged
instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had not
designated any derivatives as hedging
instruments. Changes in fair values of derivatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are being
included in the consolidated income statement as
“other gains, net”.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders in case of final dividend
and the Company’s directors in case of interim
dividend.

MRBEEREEEHRGE
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2.24

2.25

2.26
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group'’s performance.

()

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
and Mainland China and its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, US dollars (“US$”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign currency risk arises
when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not an
entity’s functional currency. As Hong Kong
dollars are pegged against US dollars,
management considers that the Group is
mainly exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to RMB. Management monitors
foreign currency exchange exposure and
will take measures to minimise the currency
translation risk. As at 31 March 2013,
apart from certain non-deliverable forward
foreign exchange contracts entered into with
commercial banks which were stated at fair
value, the Group has not used any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign
currency risk. The exchange rate of RMB
to foreign currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the Mainland Chinese
Government.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, if
both Hong Kong dollars and US dollars
strengthen/weakened by 5% against RMB
with all other variables held constant, the
post-tax profit for each year would have
changed mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies of the relevant group
companies.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBRAREE @
(Continued)
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 31 MBRERAEAE (&)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SPERBE (&)
2013 2012
—E-—-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Post-tax profit increase/ B 1% 52 A3 o0,
(decrease) OB )
— Strengthen 5% —F+{E5% 2,959 2,698
— Weakened 5% —B21E5% (2,959) (2,698)
(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest (i) RERERAFERER
rate risk B
The Group’s income and operating cash AEBZRARKLERERE
flows are substantially independent of ABMEAMGHEEE
changes in market interest rates and the Z BRROEREWRIERE
Group has no significant interest-bearing e RREFEMIN AEEWL
assets except for the long-term loan BMEAGEEE BAFEBER
receivable and cash and cash equivalents, B sE18 K201 55 - AN & B 2 Fl
details of which are disclosed in Notes ERBREBHEFITEEEB-
18 and 20. The Group’s interest rate risk FEBESASEEHRS
primarily relates to its bank borrowings. = A R R R o AN BRI
Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose 42 Tt M) K [3 Pw B B A ] 360 AR R
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The oA BEEEZVEREH
Group currently does not have a hedging FERR WRHEREE
policy in respect of the interest rate risk. HERMERR - BEMNER
1 However, management monitors the related B R P 52224 55 o
interest rate risk exposure closely and will
> @R consider hedging significant interest rate risk
= OC exposure should the need arise. The interest
= — (D :
O (whsy rates and terms of repayment of borrowings
S == are disclosed in Note 22.
g o= |
,_% The Group has no fixed interest rate AEEWERELEE W&
Sl == borrowings. Therefore it does not have any H T E A A FEF R R o
~ :|j:|> fair value interest rate risk.
w SQ
jZ> At 31 March 2013 and 2012, if the interest RZE—=Fk_F—-F
— rates on bank borrowings had been 50 ZA=+—H WRTEEZ
basis points higher/lower than the prevailing MERRITHES ES0(E
interest rate, with all other variables held A mAAEEMEERTE
constant, post-tax profit for the year FRBR % =5 R R 18
would have been HK$428,000 (2012: hn428,000 T (=T — 4 :
HK$133,000) lower/higher, mainly as a 133,000/ 7T) * E E R )% B4R
result of higher/lower interest expense on TEEZAERIES RIE

floating rate bank borrowings. B
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIRE &)

(Continued)
3.1 REREE (&)
(iii) EEE R

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The
Group'’s financial assets are trade and other
receivables, derivative financial instruments
and cash at banks. The amounts of those
assets stated in the consolidated balance
sheet represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

The Group’s credit risk is concentrated on
a number of major and long established
customers. Trade receivables from the top
five customers amounted to approximately
57% (2012: 55%) of the Group’s total
trade receivables. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with appropriate credit histories
and to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any individual customer. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group’s past experience in collection of
trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances. In order to minimise credit risk
to the Group, the Group has certain non-
recourse factoring arrangements with banks
to cover the credit risk.

EERBRERNEEERE - K
KB M BEERBKE SR
RN E A EWRIR T EE R
TARRTRE -NEAEE
BERIGZZEFEESRIE
AEBRS B EEREELZ &
=IEERR -
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ZEXTERERBARF- KB
ABRFPZERKRESERRMEXR
SEEUWE FRKBELST%
(ZE——F:55%) K&EH
B E K BRMAE B
RIFZzEFEHE  WHR G E
AENEFEZIEEE -A&E
& B4 E B R 518 @ R e
WEZERZAIREEEE A
BERRT KRB CEIEL R
BEBEE AEEBAEWE 2
FEWE SRABEIREEHE
BR-BREAEBZZER
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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3 BMBEREIRE &)
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(Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on cash at banks is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. Transactions in
relation to derivative financial instruments,
if any, are only carried out with financial
institutions of high reputation. The Group
has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any one financial institution.

For loans and receivables, amounts due
from an associate and subsidiaries, the
Group regularly monitors the financial
positions of these companies/counterparties
to assess their recoverability.

No credit limits were exceeded during the
reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.

31 MBAREE (&)
(i) FEEER (&)

HRXSEFHRERERRT
TRBEBLETESEETRZR
T ETREZEERKRE
R-BREMTESRMT A (WE)
LR HEHERITEES RS
B AEEE & EBER BE%'J
TR —RMEHEEZEER
TR

FhE RN B IR IR - MR — B

ERARMEBRRREAENS
AEBEHERZERE R

ZEF 2B AFEE
EREES

RBEEHMITEBLEEER
E‘E BEEEERPIr 2l ZE

RGEFIRITNAREEME
A& 1B o

(iv) Liquidity risk (iv) mENE £ R
Prudent liquidity risk management implies $El%’|‘ﬁf¢f¥ MENE & R
maintaining sufficient cash and cash R EEACRERAEEE

equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by controlling the level of
inventories, closely monitoring the turnover
days of receivables, monitoring its working
capital requirements and keeping credit
lines available.

% WiEREERE L THBE
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIR &)

(Continued)
3.1 KREREE (&)
(iv) UILEJ]ﬁ@”BA (%)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group's bank facilities and cash and

EEEREHE SR AE
E ERARNEERITHRENAR

cash equivalents on the basis of expected ReELB2EEBYWIREFTE
cash flows. Al o

The table below analyses the Group’s T%?ﬁﬁK’EIZ?Fﬁiﬂﬁ%
non-derivative financial liabilities and net- BERRFHEEELE 2ITE

MaEI N BRNEERRE
BRHERHTHEED A/
BRRBER -HITEMBE
BZAKNEHEE THRRSR
ERFBEZ AR
AABBITENBRBE - RN
RBESRABARMERS

settled derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. Derivative
financial liabilities are included in the
analysis if their contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing

of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in M= °
the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.
Group AEE
Less than Between Between Over
lyear 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
PR—F —EmE MELE BRLE CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET F#T FERT TR 105
31 March 2013 —B-=% S
=A=+-H g
w
Trade payables BT E 5 B8R 121,938 - - - 121,938 g
Other payables and ~ HftEMHFHER
accruals FEstE R 24,784 - - - 24,784
Borrowings =t 17,245 38,582 41,822 6,646 104,295
163,967 38,582 41,822 6,646 251,017
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BMBEREIRE &)
(Continued)

31 MBAREE (&)
(ivy RBIE&RR (7)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
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Group A&
Less than Between Between Over
lyear land?2years 2and b years 5 years Total
PR—F —EWEF WERF BANE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
31 March 2012 “F-I%
=ZA=+—H
Trade payables BB 28R 159,115 - = = 159,115
Other payables and HipEAHER
accruals JE5TE 20,757 = = = 20,757
Borrowings ) 9,753 4,683 9,000 9,799 33,240
189,625 4,688 9,000 9,799 213,112
Company P /N
Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2 and>5 years 5 years Total
PR—F —EmE MELE BBILE Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER TER TER TER
31 March 2013 —E-Z&
=B=+—-H
Other payables and ~ HttEMRFER
accruals EstEH 2,391 - - - 2,391
31 March 2012 —TCfF
=A=+—-H
Other payables and Hith e 50 K
accruals fEATE 2,242 = = = 2,242
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREIR &)

(Continued)

3.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.2 EXRREREIR

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

AEEEREARZ BRRRENEE
BESDIFABAR 2 - T 7R AR SR 7 SR [ 3y
REMAE A AR A AR M
FRIFENERE  NREEARKA -

REFRLAHABERER AREXE
ARARRIKN 2B S5  EITH
Bty EEE  LOREETR -

AEBREERFELREREAN I
WERNEERERGAREERER
PR ATE -

2013 2012

—_EFE—= —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH&ET FHET

Total bank borrowings IRITIEEBRE 102,459 31,839

Total equity B 472,704 437,206
107

Gearing ratio BEABELE 21.7% 7.3%
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BMBHERERE @)
(Continued)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION 3.3 AFEME
The table below analyses financial instruments TRIE[BELED AR FET K
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The 2T E - NRIAZRNTIREWLT :

different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets e FRBEENBERERMSZ
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). WE(REHARE) (F—4) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included o WEUUININZEAB BIEFE—
within level 1 that are observable for the Hz A EE (AMREERE) kHE
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as E(AEHEERGH)AEZE
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from EXBE(EZR) -

prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not e I IELARAIE IS8R (BIT
based on observable market data (that is, AAEZ@MAE) BREZ EE
unobservable inputs) (level 3). HEBERAB(FE=H) -

The following table presents the Group’s assets TREINAEER-ZZE—=FK=

and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 T——F=ZA=+—HEAFE

March 2013 and 2012: = EENEE:

2013 —E—Z=F

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—5 EH EZH &t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

1 FHET FET FTHET F#ET

%% Assets: BE: \

= 5% Available-for-sale AMHENBEE

- >— financial asset - - 4,323 4,323

B @5 Financial assets at BAFERAER

S Edul fair value through profit ZHBEE

= §§ or loss 7,832 - - 7,832

N =2 Derivative financial TEEMITA

& 85 instruments - 696 - 696
% Total Assets BEEE 7,832 696 4,323 12,851
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBREKRER &)
(Continued)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued) 3.3 RY{EME (£&)
2012 —E——fF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE— FE_M F= AEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FATT FATT
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale AHHERKEE
financial asset = = 2,679 2,679
Financial assets at fair %EQWEE\E)\EE&Z
value through profit MBEAE
or loss 6,993 7,762 - 14,755
Derivative financial TESmTA
instruments - 853 - 853
Total Assets BEBE 6,993 8,615 2,679 18,287
The following table presents the changes in level TRERE="HRITEREE=ZT—=
3 instruments for the year ended 31 March 2013 FER_T——F=A=+—HBItF
and 2012. Ez%%-
2013 2012
—_E—-—=F —_E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET 109
At 1 April RPEAH—H 2,679 4150 =
Fair value gain/(loss) N EWZE (BE) 1,644 (275) N
Impairment loss (Note 29) REEE (F153E29) - (1,196) P
_FH
At 31 March R=A=+—H 4,323 2,679 )
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3 BMBEREIRE &)

3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued) 3.3 A EMGE (&)
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The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm'’s length basis. The quoted market price is the
current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1 which comprise primarily equity
investments classified as trading securities or
available for sale. The Group’s listed bond under
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
as at 31 March 2013 is level 1 financial asset and
its fair value is determined by the quoted price in
active market.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level
2. The Group's foreign currency exchange notes
under financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss and derivative financial instruments above
are level 2 financial assets or instruments and
their fair value are determined with reference to
quotations provided by various banks.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. The Group's available-for-
sale financial asset as at 31 March 2013 above
is level 3 financial asset and its fair value is
determined by reference to the underlying net
asset value of the fund as determined by the fund
administrator.

RERMZEBE M T ARV ER
REEE R 2 TIGMEFTE o fin 0] AR
SHWTEHERS - RH5E &1L
*7EE  RERKEHEERBIS
RE - MABRERREREHRET
ZANEMISER S AZmsH&RAE
B -mEREARITHE %S
THERE—F-F—RITAEZTER
BOBABEERSFRAULERSFZ
EAEE - AEER " —=F=H
Z+—HEQAFELRABZEZ VB
BEETN 2 LTEHFBE —RUB
BE EAVERERM S ZHREM

B

YN ERMSEECERMTAR
FEAGBERNEE - ZFHEXM
BERABRAIGRAMSEE X
BEHREARBMNER 2 HE - fHE
ELANRFEMBEHEIEGRA
BEYRBRAF AZTABRFE -
o AREEBENZATFELABRLZ
MBEEZINERBRITESRT
HEBNE _FMBKEEEXTA MH
NFEZ2RIERITARBRESE
=

i —IBKZIA T B AEILIEAE
RAGTMEBELAER RIZTAER
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RE-RYBEE ERFEDNZE
HeBBRAMBEEESZHBEE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(A) INCOME TAXES

The Group is subject to various taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

4

EZEREARAIE

A B I T R e 1 A B S B At R = /Y
BRI AR SEE - BREREEIBAEEE
BEMBRFAERS-

AEBRARKELFERBR FAFEE
AREEEEEBR L RERERERY
F-REXRERN MEMBRFEEREE
MEAGBRMELREAE ZFE KRR
IS

(A) FTSH
REBEHRZ [ERDEER 2 HRIA
RTE TS T RS 2R 1E HE B K AT A
BRZHER S R EZ&RHEAR
REN BB X PRHETE © HRARRGE
RENPLHFEER ZRBTE
R TE BRI BV ER P 5 % BB ST P 1S 72
Bt

REEERSRAIER BRERN
M PAB) R i Z AR B IR B 1R
BREBETEREBIELEH A
BE - WMERISREFRTMEFER
EREZRRSTEMAFEHHMER
ZIEERIAEERAEHMAX -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(B)

ESTIMATED WRITE-DOWNS OF
INVENTORIES TO NET REALISABLE
VALUE

The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of
the realisability of inventories. Write-downs of
inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
These estimates are based on the correct market
condition and the historical experience of selling
prices of similar nature. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

ESTIMATED PROVISION FOR
IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group makes provision for impairment of
trade receivables and other receivables based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and other receivables. Provisions are
applied to trade receivables and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
For trade receivables, the assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and the
current market condition, and requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and impairment is recognised in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.
For other receivables, the provision was made by
reference to the difference between the carrying
amount of the other receivables and the present
value of estimated future cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continuea)

(D) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — SHARE-BASED

(E)

(F)

PAYMENTS

The determination of the fair value of the share
options granted requires estimates in determining,
among others, the expected volatility of the
share price, the expected dividend yield, the
risk-free interest rate for the life of the option,
and the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable as stated in Note 25.
Where the outcome of the number of options
that are exercisable is different, such difference
will impact the consolidated income statement in
the subsequent remaining vested period of the
relevant share options.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments that are traded in an active
market are determined by the quoted market
prices.

For the fair values of financial assets and
derivative financial instruments not traded in an
active market, the Group would use the quoted
price provided by counterparty to estimate the
fair values. The methodologies, models and
assumptions used in valuing these financial
assets and derivative financial instruments require
judgement by management which are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.9.
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations prepared on the basis of
management’s assumptions and estimates
(Note 2.9). These calculations require the use of
estimates.
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Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continuea)

(@)

(H)

USEFUL LIVES AND ESTIMATED
IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group amortises its intangible assets with
finite useful lives on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives
reflect the management’s estimates of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these intangible assets.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-
line basis over a period of five years. The Group
tests whether the intangible assets have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable in according
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.7.
The recoverable amounts of the intangible assets
have been determined as the higher of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, i.e.
the amount for which the asset could be sold
between knowledgeable and willing parties, net of
estimated costs of disposal.

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's property, plant and equipment,
and land use rights have been depreciated or
amortised based on their estimated useful lives
and estimated residual values. Management has
reviewed the estimated useful lives and considers
they are appropriate. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and land
use rights of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to market conditions. Management will increase
the depreciation and amortization charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete
or nonstrategic assets that have been abandoned
or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result
in a change in depreciable lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the
future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Executive Directors of the Group (collectively
referred to as the “CODM”) that make strategic
decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of
the Group in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

The CODM considers the business from a product
perspective and assesses separately the performance of
electronic products, and moulds and plastics products.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of the results of
reportable segments. Finance income and costs,
corporate income and expenses, fair value gain/(loss) of
financial assets and share of loss of an associate are not
included in the results for each operating segment that
are reviewed by the CODM. Other information provided
to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the financial statements.

Revenue from external customers is shown after
elimination of inter-segment revenue. Sales between
segments are carried out at mutually agreed terms.
The revenue from external parties reported to CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income
tax assets, tax recoverable, available-for-sale financial
assets, bond investments, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, long-term loan receivables,
interests in associates and corporate assets, all of which
are managed on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable
segment exclude current and deferred income tax
liabilities and corporate liabilities. These are part of
the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 EER®

BBE-F-=FR-F-—F=5
=+ —BILFEEHA AL BEERE

The segment information provided to the CODM for the
reportable segments for the year ended 31 March 2013
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and 2012 is as follows:

AR ZDBERIT

2013
ZE-Z=f
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Elimination Total
BER
EFER BBER S| &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#xT T#xT T#xT T#xT
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers — JMNEEFEUas 1,075,368 32,120 - 1,107,488
Inter-segment revenue o RE R W - 10,198 (10,198) -
1,075,368 42,318 (10,198) 1,107,488
Results of reportable segments CES 5 E 80,507 (1,924) - 78,583
A reconciliation of results of A ERDEEER
reportable segments to profit FREH 2 IR
for the year is as follows: ZZDT g
Results of reportable segments A E2|DEEE 78,583
Unallocated expenses, net FN) @EE%SE el (875)
Other income Helg A 692
Other gains, net H At i z5 - F 58 3,406
Operating profit 4% i s 7 81,806
Finance income B WA 4,301
Finance costs BhE R (2,425)
Share of loss of associate iy A=l
B (865)
Profit before income tax B P15 3 Rl s Al 82,817
Income tax expense FTiS R (5,364)
Profit for the year F 1A )4 7 77,453



5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #H =

Notes to the Financial Statementg
W ISR M o
—E-=F=ZA=1+—HIFE

5 HEER#)

2013
gz
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Unallocated Total
BEAR
ETES BRBES P &5
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FTHExT FT#ExT FTExT
Other segment information HitnnEE R
Depreciation on property, L ER
plant and equipment e 9,595 2,141 3,181 14,917
Amortisation of intangible assets & & B 4,724 - - 4,724
Amortisation of land use rights o {5h P A S 849 59 80 988
Additions to non-current assets ERDEEZARE
(other than interests in associates,  (REtE A F 2
financial assets and deferred tax Ba UKEER
assets) BT IBEE
BRAMN) 100,574 271 290 101,135
Income tax expense FTiS i 32 6,090 (398) (328) 5,364
2012
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Elimination Total
BAK
BfEM BRE® #1145 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FETT FETT
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers ~ 9NRE 1& 1,193,273 48,724 = 1,241,997
Inter-segment revenue gl e = 8,496 (8,496) -
1,193,273 57,220 (8,496) 1,241,997
Results of reportable segments AERpAEE 93,853 3,701 = 97 554
A reconciliation of results of AE2RHEEEN
reportable segments to profit for PRl H
the year is as follows: LNE
Results of reportable segments AEWmoEESE 97,554
Unallocated income, net KOBMWA  F5E 138
Other income Ham A 1,586
Other gains, net Haha 558 684
Operating profit 4 A 99,962
Finance income BE WA 3,224
Finance costs AR AR (1,343)
Profit before income tax Bﬂfﬁﬁ 57 A1 4 A 101,843
Income tax expense BHMAX (8,757)
Profit for the year FREF 93,086

8 HET/2102
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BTSRRI 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @)
2012
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Unallocated Total
EAR
BETEM BREm AAER =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Other segment information HitvpEER
Depreciation on property, ER YN
plant and equipment e 8,478 2,162 3,113 13,753
Amortisation of land use rights 356 P R 8 - 57 80 137
Additions to non-current assets FRBEELRE
(other than interests in associates, (REE& A7l Z
financial assets and deferred tax ~ #25 MIEEE R
assets) BEMEHEE
BRI 14,744 999 78 15,821
Income tax expense Frisfim X 7,462 737 558 8,757
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Notes to the Financial Statementg
W ISR M o
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 TEER®

The segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31 R=RA=T—RHz2oBEEERBEEEK
March and the reconciliation to the total assets and total BERENBERBHERENT

liabilities are as follows:

2013
—E—-=
Moulds
Electronic and plastic
products products Total
HAR
EFESR HMBES %
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&ET Fi#xT FET
Segment assets DEEE 616,414 35,737 652,151
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTISTE E 3,524
Tax recoverable B QER 2,407
Unallocated: RO :
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - &= k& & 48,313
Interests in associates ANl - X 1,868
Long-term loan receivable REE WA 16,575
Other investments HMig& 21,294
Other unallocated assets HihRDBLEE 9,992
Total assets per consolidated MeEEERERAR
balance sheet BERE 756,124
Segment liabilities DEAE 139,428 4,691 144,119
Income tax payable FERFTISR 10,885 119
Deferred income tax liabilites ~ EIEFTSF A& 5,759
Unallocated: RO :
Bank borrowings PITIEE 102,459 S
Other unallocated liabilities B RoBBfE 20,198 ©
Total liabilities per consolidated 43& BEBBEXRAR -cﬁ)?
balance sheet B EmE 283,420 =




Notes to the Financial Statements

B F e R BT 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=A=+—HILFE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @)
2012
Moulds
Electronic and plastic
products products Total
BE K
BT Em B RBE M =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Segment assets DIEE 515,814 43,072 558,886
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTH & E 3,665
Tax recoverable A Ug [ 7 18 400
Unallocated: RO :
Property, plant and equipment #1% - = M &R & 51,965
Interests in associates A NI 1,733
Long-term loan receivable RHEIE ARG 16,250
Other investments HwE 31,708
Other unallocated assets HiRD AL & E 2,854
Total assets per consolidated %A BEB BRI~
balance sheet BEREB 667,461
Segment liabilities DEEE 171,320 5,926 177,246
Income tax payable FERTET1SHL 15,737
Deferred income tax liabilites  #EIEFTSFH B & 2,807
Unallocated: RO :
Bank borrowings RITEE 31,839
Other unallocated liabilities HithRHBELAE 2,626
Total liabilities per consolidated 42 & BE B EXRR
balance sheet BEBRE 230,255
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Notes to the Financial Statements

W ISR M o
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @)
The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. An analysis AARARBREFM - AEEEHEE=ZT
of the Group’s revenue from external customers by —ZEhN"E——F=ZA=+—HIFE
country for the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 is RERE D ZIREFREZSTAT
as follows:
2013 2012
—E—Z=F —ET——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FETT
The United States of America E 458,159 404,624
United Kingdom [ 194,017 301,611
Japan SN 233,575 256,426
PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BERS) 119,122 116,516
Australia BN 34,090 42149
Others Eith 68,525 120,671
1,107,488 1,241,997
An analysis of the Group's non-current assets, AEBIRMEE S ZIERBEE (TEE
excluding deferred income tax assets, by geographical BEMSHEE) DT :
locations is as follows:
2013 2012
—_E—-=F —ET—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#H&xT FET
121
Hong Kong BB 108,255 75,763
Mainland China AR B K 130,656 82,983 N
Macao JEFY 146 181 N
239,057 158,927 %
#




Notes to the Financial Statements

B F e R BT 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @)
For the year ended 31 March 2013, four (2012: four) HE_T—=F=-A=+—HILFE @
major customers each accounted for 10% or more H(ZE——F R TERFZHEER
of the Group’s external revenue. The revenue from AEB NI 25 Z 10%88 A F o 3 B 5% Y
these four (2012: four) customers is attributable to HZ(ZE——F mR)BFPHKETIRE
the segment of electronic products and details are as BfEmMPE FHEOT:
follow:
2013
—E_=x
HK$'000
F#ExT
Customer A = FEH 186,274
Customer B 2R 168,818
Customer C XFER 167,357
Customer D 2ET 121,558
644,007
2012
HK$'000
F&ET
Customer A =EH 268,194
Customer B 2R 189,298
Customer C 2ER 146,223
Customer D 2ET 136,103
739,818
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Notes to the Financial Statementg
W ISR M o
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 YX -MERRE

Group
8- 3. |
Leasehold Furniture
Land and  improve-  Plant and and Construction
buildings ments machinery equipment in progress Total
Tk HE BEE FHE
BF WEEE BE # ERIE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT FET BT BT BT
At 1 April 2011 R-B——%
mA—H
Cost B AR 97,124 21,690 118,518 37,047 - 274,379
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (11971)  (19,269) (100,281)  (29,491) - (161,012
Net book amount RHFE 85,153 2,421 18,237 7,556 - 113,367
Year ended 31 March 2012 HZ_F—_—4%
=R=+-8
LEE
Opening net book amount FOERRFE 85,153 2,421 18,237 7,556 - 113,367
Additions NE - 784 13,138 1,899 - 15,821
Disposals & - - (4) - - (4)
Depreciation nE (2,524) (625) (8,145) (2,459) = (13,753)
Exchange differences fE =5 416 68 646 117 = 1,247
Closing net book amount FIRERFE 83,045 2,648 23,872 7,113 - 116678
At 31 March 2012 RZF-—ZF
=A=+-—H
Cost XA 97,611 23,277 134,721 39,025 - 294,634
Accumulated depreciation RiENE (14566)  (20,629) (110,849)  (31912) - (177,956)
Net book amount REFE 83,045 2,648 23,872 7,113 - 116,678
Year ended 31 March 2013 #HZ_F—=
=R=+-8
LEE
Opening net book amount EERRFE 83,045 2,648 23,872 7,113 - 116,678
Additions NE - 292 5,880 1,504 7,207 14,883 Sk
Disposals & - - 3) (5) - (8) o
Depreciation nE (2,531) (724) (9,079) (2,583) - (14,917) 8
Exchange differences EXER 201 39 424 66 - 730 s
Closing net book amount FIRERFE 80,715 2,255 21,094 6,095 7,207 117,366 =
At 31 March 2013 RZFE—Z=&
=A=+-H
Cost B S 97,854 23,750 140,946 39,030 7,207 308,787
Accumulated depreciation 2RENE (17,139)  (21,495) (119,852) (32,935) - (191,421)
Net book amount REFE 80,715 2,255 21,094 6,095 7,207 117,366

Depreciation expense of HK$9,079,000 (2012:
HK$8,266,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
and HK$5,838,000 (2012: HK$5,487,000) has been
expensed in general and administrative expenses.

#r & B9 9,079,000 7T (—Z T — — 4 :
8,266,000/ 7T) BN HE K AN A 8K - M
5,838,000/ 7T (=& — =4 : 5,487,000
BI)AR—REITREEBRAL -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s interests in land and buildings held in
Hong Kong are analysed as follows:

ME- BB RSE &)

AEBRNEEREZLHEBF 2SS
e

Group
A&
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Leases between 10-50 years L FEN F10=504F 45,590 46,914

The remaining land and buildings represent properties
held in the PRC.

As at 31 March 2013, certain bank borrowings are
secured by land and buildings with a carrying amount
of HK$45,590,000 (2012: HK$46,914,000) (Note 22).

7 LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in land use rights represented
prepaid operating lease payments and their movements
and net book value are analysed as follows:

BT REFERPEFA Y-

RZE—=F=A=+—8H &T&R{IE
E LA BR T {8 545,590,000 7T (=T — =
F 1 46,914,000/8 7T ) 2 T3 KB FIEEA
(BizE22) ©

st A

AEBRLIMEREZERARENRE
BB EEZSH REEFEZ TN
T~

Group

AEE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FET
Beginning of the year REF] 4,159 4,225
Addition INE 57,592 -
Amortisation b % (988) (137)
Exchange differences =5 35 71
End of the year REK 60,798 4,159

Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBIRINGE :

Leases of between 10 to 50 years FHAFEEN F102 505 60,798 4,159
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W ISR M o
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
7 LAND USE RIGHTS (continuea) 7 IiERE2)
Note: On 19 December 2012, the Group entered into a feF: R=ZT—=—F+=-A+hB K&KEFL
sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to which the —mEERH B BEAEERUHRERE
purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase, and the EmMAEREE EGEHRE L SR Universal
Group conditionally agreed to sell, 100% equity interests Gain Limited ([UGLJ) 2 100%A% # - 37 &
in Universal Gain Limited (“UGL”) at cash consideration KRB & A R %138,000,0005t > UGLJY A8 &
of RMB138,000,000. UGL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bz2ENBRAR  MER—EFR L
the Group which has interest in a piece of land in the PRC. HE#EZ I BEFEBKERERAER
In addition, the purchaser conditionally agree to grant the EREEKRAAEERLAIERS TER
Group the right to repurchase certain of the re-developed MEZEN HEFBER_ZE—=F=FH
properties in future upon the completion of re-development. =t+—HBHEKRTK-
The disposal is not yet completed as at 31 March 2013.
8 INTANGIBLE ASSET 8 EREE
Intangible asset represents customer relationship. BEREEEERFPBR- RFAZEHN
Movement during the year is as follows: 3
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—=f —E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Beginning of the year REH] - -
Recognised upon acquisition of PR EE A — B R
remaining equity interest ERCHTRERER
in a jointly controlled entity (Note 41) (MI3E41) 25,770 =
Amortisation (Note 30) #5H (MI5E30) (4,724) -
End of the year NGRS 21,046 - 125
Note: B 5 N
of
Amortisation of HK$4,724,000 is included in general and B 8H4,724,0008 L et AR e R A —R& K AT i)
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement. BEBEERAIET - %
oy
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
9 GOODWILL 9 HE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Beginning of the year REF]) 1,059 1,059
Addition (Note 41) NE (FIEE41) 2,890 -
End of the year RELR 3,949 1,059
IMPAIRMENT TEST FOR GOODWILL EEAEN S
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating EEDOEEAEENREFERDBERNZ
units (“CGU") within the electronic product segment. ReEABEN ([REEEEHM]) o
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined WeEEEN 2038 iR EREE
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations HEEAET B ENRBEEEER
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets ZRERAFHRE M BREEERZRER
approved by management covering a five-year period. =TERETT
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET AT
Gross margin FEFI = 13.0%-18.0% 18.0%
Revenue growth rate Iz 1 & R 3.0%-5.0% 5.0%
Discount rate Bh 37 & 12.0% 5.0%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR R M R
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
GOODWILL (continuea) 9 B8 %)
The assumptions have been used for the analysis of ERARKEREITEEDEETSRE
each CGU within the operating segment. EEBAL
Management determined budgeted gross margin ERERBATRRAREMSGER 2EH
and revenue growth rate based on past performance ErENEEERKGIERE KA
and their expectations for market development. The EEEETF%TRHI FlZx A REEESE IR
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks T B
relating to the relevant segments.
Based on the discounted cash flow forecast prepared 7@?5@:7@fﬁﬁzzaﬁﬁfﬁiﬁémiﬁﬂ’
by management, the directors are of the view that there EERREERNE—=FRE—=F
is no impairment of goodwill as at 31 March 2013 and —A=+—RHAYERE-
2012.
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 10 R B AR ZHE&E KRB HB
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM NEIFRIE
SUBSIDIARIES
(A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (A) RMIBARIZIRE
Company
Y N/NC|
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FETT
Investments, at costs & REKAE 66,139 65,974

The Directors are of the opinion that the
underlying value of investments in subsidiaries is
not less than their carrying values as at 31 March
2013 and 2012.

BEEZRE RHEBARZIRE 286
BEIMNPRER-_T—=FK_
T —_F=-HA=t—HzKAEE-

HE4E1/c10C




Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR =T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 10 RMIB AR 2% E R EWH B
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM NEFRIE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
(B) AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (B) JE YT B~ A FKIE
The balances due from subsidiaries are JE BT 2 B FRI8 2 45 B8R TH &I -
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on PENREBERENREE -BKHERA
demand. The carrying values of the amounts due FIEZREEEAEQNTERS -

from subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL (C) RARIRZ=ZZE—=F=AH
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT =t+—BZFEWBRARFE
31 MARCH 2013 ARE AS FOLLOWS: (I
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
REM AL B 3L B R TEXHBR
A1 EERERER BBT/BARE AEEEERAEE HE b
2013 2012
—E-=f —E-—_fF
Suga International British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding in
Limited (vi) limited liability company ~ US$700 Hong Kong
EBRAHS BBAR TBR700ET REBNEREZR
Suga Electronics Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
(Hong Kong) Limited liability company HK$2 products in
Hong Kong
BERRRAA BB ARRAA LER2B T REBEEETER
pd TN
S (o] Suga Electronics Limited (i) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
§ 5% liability company HK$2 products in
== Hong Kong
S [ BESTHRAT( &% ARAA HBRET REBERETES
Ny — O
% §§ Non-voting 100% 100%
5 '__"—'6 deferred shares
U2 HK$4,000,000 (i)
= BRZBELRG

4,000,000 7L.(1)




10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(C)

DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

0 RHMB LR ZH%E K EWHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS
AT 31 MARCH 2013 ARE AS FOLLOWS:

NEIFRIE (&)

(C) KABIR=ZE—=F=H
=t HZFTEWNERQARFE
MR (&)

(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
AL ELSL B S S B B FTEXBR
A% ERERERN BET/BARE AEEEERAE S S
2013 2012
“F-Zf —T-—F
Suga Electronics Mainland China, limited HK$33,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. liability company electronic products
(if), (viii) in Mainland China
BEEF ORI REIRRE - BRAA 33,500,000/ 7T NGNS S
BREAT (i) (vii) Efm
Suga Networks Hong Kong  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
Limited liability company HK$100,000 products in
Hong Kong
EERBBBERAR B BRAA £ A% 100,000/ 7T REBEEEFEmM
- .‘ . . . ‘ 129
Suga Technology Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 50%  Trading of electronic
(formerly known as liability company HK$2 products in
Suga Al Limited) Hong Kong -
EERIMERAT BB BRAA TRR2ET REBEEEFEmM N
(B17 ASuga-Al Limited ) ®
A
Suga Networks Equipment  Mainland China, limited HK$17,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of =
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. liability company electronic products
(“SNESL”) (iif), (vii) in Mainland China
EEAgET ORI REIREE - BB AT 17,500,000/ 70 NGNS
ARR (H EE Em
21 i) ~ (viii)
On Million Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property holding in

EBRRA

liability company

BE BRAF

HK$2
LRR2BT

Hong Kong
NERRANR
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(C)

10 M B AR 2R E R B B

NEFRIE (&)

KRR —_E—=F=H
=t+—HZEZEWBRARFIE

DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS

S

AT 31 MARCH 2013 ARE AS FOLLOWS: R ()
(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
AL BB R TEXHR
AT ERERER BBT/BARE AEEEERAER BRI
2013 2012
Z3-=f ZT--f
Typhoon International British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Property holding in
Limited limited liability company ~ US$1 Mainland China
AREHKRERAA HBEEUHS BRAR EBRIET INGIENESEY R ES
P&S Macao Commercial Macao, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of pet
Offshore Limited company MOP100,000 products in Macao
BERFREEERE R ARAA LA AR100,00012 9 & WRMEBEYER
BRRA
Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Mainland China, limited ~ HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. (“PSSL") (iv), liability company pet products in
(vii) Mainland China
BEEX ORI REIARE - BRAA 10,000,000/ 7 P BIRRE B
%g Eﬁﬁ’u‘mﬁ (TaERI) 2 m
=— (iv) ~ (viii)
SO >
o == . - - 5 Y Des -
3 %_1 Sugg Q|g\ta| Technology HOjg Kgng, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Design anq trading of
% ’_% Limited liability company HK$2 electronic products
= EZ in Hong Kong
= :|j:|> FEHBREERAR B BRAA LRkoB T REBRIARER
w 8% TTER
>
—




10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(C)

DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL

Notes to the Financial Statements

ARSI MR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

10 KB AR 2R E R B B

NEIFRIE (&)

(C)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS —+—HZEE
AT 31 MARCH 2013 ARE AS FOLLOWS: W ()
(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
AL ELSL B S S B B FTEXBR
A% ERERERN BET/BARE AEEEERAE S S
2013 2012
“F-Zf —T-—F
Precise Computer Tooling  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of moulds
Co., Limited liability company HK$500,000 and plastic
products in
Hong Kong
BIERAEERAR BB BRAA £ 500,000/ 7T REBEBERAR
BRER
Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling ~ Mainland China, limited US$6,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
and Plastic Injection liability company moulds and
(Huizhou) Co., Limited plastic products in
(“Nodic") (v), (viii) Mainland China 131
AR N RE REIARRE - BRAR 6,000,000 ¢ B RREEEREA
(BMERAT RERBEm
(THE771) () ~ (i) =t
S
Happypaws International ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 70% 70%  Pet food distribution @
Limited (formerly known liability company HK$10 in Asia counties g
as “Suga LED Limited”)
RUEBRBRARAR BB BRAH EREBI0B T RENERD #HED
(A% A& [Suga LED Bm
Limited ] )
SGI Venture Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary shares 52% - Design and trading of
(formerly known as liability company HK$100 electronic products
“Diamond Harvest in Hong Kong
Investment Limited”)
EEERMBNERRAR B BERAA L iAmIR100% T - REBRGRERS
(AT [EERE FEm

BRAR])
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Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS
AT 31 MARCH 2013 ARE AS FOLLOWS:
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The non-voting deferred shares of Suga Electronics
Limited are held by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
and Broadway Business Limited, which are owned
by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On, directors
and beneficial shareholders of the Company. These
non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights,
are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares.

(i) Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly
foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 20
years until June 2014.

(i)  SNESL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until October 2022.

(iv)  PSSL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until April 2024.

(v) Nodic is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 30 year until September 2020.

(vi)  The shares of Suga International Limited are held
directly by the Company. The shares of the other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

(vii)  None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 March 2013.

(viii)  All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have a
financial accounting year end date on 31 December
in accordance with the local statutory requirements,
which is not coterminous with the Group. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group were
prepared based on the management accounts of
these subsidiaries for the twelve months ended 31
March 2013.

10 RAMB AR 2R E R B B

NEFRIE (&)

C) Ax

BR-_FE—=F=AH

=t+t—HBZFTEWBRARFIE
mK: (&)

o -

()

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

FEEFAERARZEREZERLER
7 Hi Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
K Broadway Business Limited# 74 -
MZzEAAARARBESRERR
RRARBELIREEREEHEE %
S FRIRIER () AR = S AR
BRE FRE REEBREBAE
T Ik B A% 3 38 1% 10,000,000,0007%
TLiE  REEREREEEROREA
T A ED K

FEEFCRIDERABRBES
RERIL Z ZINERE  BiREE
FHEREE_T-—NFRAL BH
20%F e

EEEREMBERBRRER L2 2
SNERE ERE s ERBREEZ
T _F+ A1k BE20%F-

BAERINSER B AR Z 250
AR BREZERYREE"F
—PM4ER A Lk AEI204F -

A RERBERERLZ2IE D
X EGEZEZRZHNREE_T_F
FNA L SHI305 -

Suga International Limited 2 B&{% B 2%
NAEERA - M B QR 2’5
Bl AQEMERE-

REBE_Z—=F=A=+—HIHF
AR SMENBARAERNE
BITEEER-

RIBE AR - PIAR T BIAREER L
ZHBRRIZT B Gt FEFER
BARTZRA=+—HB HEXKEZF
BANR - AEEGS W HRRIIIZ
ZENBRARBE_ZT—=F=A
=t—HE+—AAZERRER
o



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTG R M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE
11 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 11 REtE A NRIZHER
(A) INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (A) REE R RIS
Group
A5
2013 2012
—_E—-=F —ET——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&ERT F&ET
Share of net assets BLHEEFE 1,868 1,733
The aggregate assets and liabilities of the Group'’s AEERSELMBERRICEE
associates, each of which is unlisted, are as TEERENT
follows:
Particulars of issued Country of
Name shares held incorporation % Interest held Assets Liabilities Revenue Loss
1 HEERTRHAHE ERALER HERE% 13 afk WA B

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z§-Zf “E-—F "§-Zf "F-—F “§-ZE "T-"F “§-2f T —F “F-2f " T——F
HK$'000 ~ HKS000 HK$'000 HKSO000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000  HK$000

Téx TEr Tz TET TEx TEr TR TEL

Modern Tech Limited Ordinary shares HK$10,500,000 Hong Kong, limited 28.57%  2857% 105 105 77 71 - = - =
(2012: HK$10,500,000) liability company
HARRBRAR LiA10,500,0005 7T E# ERAT

(Z%—2%:10,500,000%7)

CKICOM Technology Ordinary shares HK$1 Hong Kong, limited 19.21% 18% 3,142 3055 12,343 7833 831 1,254 4,423 1,889
Limited (Note) ( F&E) (2012: HK$1) liability company 1 3 3
ERRIAT (Z2-2%:18) BF ARAA

K4 E1/10C




Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

11 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 11 REEERNRIZERE &)

ontinue RS N ) 2 ()
(A) INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) (A) PAEE
Note: s -
(@ On 19 February 2013, the Group further acquired (@ RZZE—=FZA+tIhA TEBEE
1.21% equity shares of CKICOM Technology — F U BE CKICOM Technology Limited
Limited (“CKICOM”) with cash consideration of (TCKICOM |)W1.21%E =5 B
HK$1,000,000. Although the Group has less than IR &R E&1,000 OOO/%E ?IEW‘ZK
20% equity interests in CKICOM, the Group has &£ B CKICOMA #E B 4 1R 20% % 7
significant influence over CKICOM and is able to Mz BEAEEECKICOMA EX
participate in the financial and operating policy F2 ) LA K g8 2 EACKICOMEY 87 7%
decisions of CKICOM. RS & B ORTE ©
(b)  No accumulated losses are recognised by the Group (b) HBRASEBEBEINEERERED
for Modern Tech Limited as the Group does not have AR B R AN PASN 2 8518 - AR SR E I
further obligation to bear the losses of the associate ERIARBER AT BRRSTE
beyond its cost of investment. B
(B) AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (B) FEWHSEE A RIFIA
Amount due from an associate is unsecured and i /Nl Iﬁﬁﬂﬂfﬁ#ﬁ&%g .
non-interest bearing. A specified percentage of RN R EHE o b B K =
profit from the associate’s profits will be used EEERAREERREEN -

for repayment of the outstanding loans from the
shareholders.

12 INTEREST IN A JOINTLY 12 R—EHEEEHEE ([HREE
CONTROLLED ENTITY (“JCE”) AND FIER]) ZESREW—REE
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JCE FEEH EEIE
Group
AEE
2013 2012
> a2 —F-= e
> Y HK$’000  HK$'000
5 SN FaT FHIL
g GZ)% Share of net assets (Note (a)) fE1RE EFE (KsE@)) - -
S [l
§ %g Amount due from a jointly controlled FEN— R L[R5 & 22
S—= entity (Note (b)) I (M 3E(b)) - 30,083
wiille)
U=
>
—




Notes to the Financial Statements

W ISR M o
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE
12 INTEREST IN A JOINTLY 12 w—EXEEHER ([ XEE
CONTROLLED ENTITY (“JCE”) AND FER|)ZESRER—RBE
) = = G "
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JCE (continued) EEFEEKIE 2
Notes: B 5 -
(@ As at 31 March 2012, no accumulated losses are (@) MR-Z——F=A=+—H Bl AE£EB#H
recognised by the Group for the JCE as the Group does not MmEEAELRIZEGEBRERANUIINZ
have further obligation to bear the losses of the JCE beyond R AR EGAREH EERRR
its cost of investment. In May 2012, the Group acquired the BB -RZZT——FAA AEEKER
remaining 50% equity interest in the jointly controlled entity H R FIE 88 2 82 N50%ARAE (HIsE41) -
(Note 41).
(b) As at 31 March 2012, the amount due from the JCE (b) MRIT—-F=A=+—0 BERILRZEH
comprised trade receivables from the JCE. The carrying BEER E@%TH&Z £ [ 428 Emﬁ%%ﬂ“
value of the amount due from the JCE approximated its fair ERERZEFEERE FAEAE QT
value. BRE-
As at 31 March 2012, the Group held a 50% indirect RZE—ZF=HA=+—0 rxEERHKL
interest in a jointly controlled entity, which is unlisted. EIEH B EAS0%EE R HAIE
The principal activity of the JCE is trading of electronic EH KRS ERENEEXEFAEES
products. ?Euu
The following amounts represent the assets, liabilities, NTEBEARRAEHEER-_T—=FK
revenue and loss of the JCE as at and for the year T CHF=A=1+—BREEZZAH
ended 31 March 2013 and 2012. IFFENEE A WARER-
Group's share of
Particulars of issued Country of AREREN
Name shares held incorporation % Interest held Assets Liabilities Revenue Loss
&8 HECETRAFE M IER BHEER% 73 & B B
2013 02 2013 w2 2013 N0 2013 2002
Z%-Zf “T-—% “%-f “T-_F “F-f “T-_F “F-Zf& “T-_%
HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000
$%  TEn  TER  TEr  FER  TAr  TER  TAn 135
Suga Technology Limited Ordinary shares HK$2 Hong Kong, limited 50% N/A 42,089 N/A 42,089 22,060 295,492 - -
(formerly known as liability company
Suga-Al Limited) B 7
EERTERAR E@koEn &b BRAR TER TER S
(U7 ASuga-Al Limited) =
w
e
There are no contingent liabilities and capital AREBRZEREH B 2 EET /IR By
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in the BER /§$7¥Kf‘ ZHAREHEEASR
jointly controlled entity, and no contingent liabilities and T ZF=A=1+—RHNEIAREER
capital commitments exist in the jointly controlled entity BN o

as at 31 March 2012.
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B F TR R BT 5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 13 At HERBFEE
ASSET
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T TET
At 1 April REA—H 2,679 4150
Fair value gain/(loss) AFENE S (BER) 1,644 (275)
Impairment loss (Note 29) BEEE (K13E29) - (1,196)
At 31 March R=A=+—=H 4,323 2,679
The available-for-sale financial asset represented 5,000 AHEENBEEERIF L MRAE
non-voting, redeemable, and participating shares in an % F 5,000/ £ 3% R 4 0] B [0 2 L)k
unlisted equity fund. It is denominated in US dollars BERm -BHEEENUETIE EQ
and the fair value is determined by reference to the FEDNDZ2EZEESEBAMEBEECE
net asset value of the fund as determined by the fund CEEFEMERE-

administrator.

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 14 BT ERLNERZZUBFEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—Zf —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
S, FET FET
=] OC :
< ) Non-current JE B
- gj: Investment in listed bonds REMEHRZKE 1,279 6,993
o Bl ol ____
§ 8;’] Current B
N — Foreign currency exchange note HNE Z= 5 - 7,762
=< o AL T P
S :|:(_>| Investment in listed bonds REMEHFZEE 6,553 =
wISS 6,533 7,762
B
=
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 14 BRATEXLNEZZUBFTEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (%)
2013 2012
—_FE—-=F —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
At 1 April REA—H 14,755 11,481
(Disposals)/additions (H&) RE (7,762) 3,686
Exchange difference b X =58 153 306
Changes in fair value NFEEE 686 (718)
At 31 March R=A=+—~ 7,832 14,755
As at 31 March 2013, financial assets at fair value R-E—=F=A=+—H EAFED
through profit or loss represented listed corporate ABR P BEERE EMARES K=
bonds. As at 31 March 2012, financial assets at fair T——F=ZA=1+—H EAFELARE
value through profit or loss represented listed corporate mZMBEER EMARESREEHE
bonds and a currency-linked note. FiEo
The terms of maturity of the listed corporate bonds are EWARES 2 BIHF AT
summarised as follow:
2013 2012
—FT-=f —T—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#HxT FET
Less than 1 year DPR—F 6,553 - 137
Between 1 and 2 year —FEWEF 1,279 5,802
Between 2 and 5 year WEERF - 1,191
N
7,832 6,993 =1
S
=
w
The coupon rates of the listed corporate bonds are from M ARBEFNEEEREF6HET.04% g
6% to 7.04% per annum (2012: 6% to 7.04%). These (ZE—ZF :6%27.04% ) « ZEEHUA
bonds are denominated in Renminbi. AR¥ETI(E -
At 31 March 2013, the fair values of the listed corporate R-TE—=F=A=+—H8 ' FTARIE

bonds were determined based on quoted market prices. FEZRNFEERMIGREETE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

15 BONDS INVESTMENTS 15 E5KRE

Group
AEE

2013 2012
—E—-= —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
At 1 April I —H 14,274 14,011
Disposals HE (5,163) -
Exchange difference fE N ZE% 28 263
At 31 March R=A=+—H 9,139 14,274

The terms of maturity of the bonds investments are BHFRE 2D BGERBMERT

summarised as follow:

2013 2012
—E-—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET TAT
Less than 1 year DPR—F 1,428 5,165
Between 1 and 2 years B E R A - 1,398
Between 2 and 5 years FE_FEFRF - -
Over 5 years HELAE 7,711 7,711
9,139 14,274

The coupon rates of the bonds investments are from
2.90% to 5.55% (2012: 2.70% to 5.55%) per annum.

The bonds investments are denominated in the

BEEREZEBRAFF290%E5.55%
(ZE——%F:2.70%%5.55% ) °

BEHEREBUATEEIIE:

o
S (@)= following currencies:
= — (D
S 2013 2012
) ==
(8]) 85 —E—-= =
N HK$'000 HK$'000
S== F#T THT
N ——
w SQ
jZ> US dollars ETT 7,711 7,711
= Renminbi AR #& 1,428 6,563
9,139 14,274

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying amount of bonds investments.

RBEBH FAEERRAESFRELZ

AREIE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 16 #HEME D z&M IR

CATEGORY
Group
r&EH
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
BHE BATETZA
BlWHE BHZEE A& &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Assets aE
At 31 March 2013 R-E—Z=F
=A=+-8
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHEREEE
(Note 13) (fEE13) - = 4,323 4,323
Financial assets at fair value BRAFELARR
through profit or loss (Note 14) TS EE
(f3E14) = 7,832 = 7,832
Bonds investments (Note 15) BHERE (M:E15) 9,139 = = 9,139
Trade and other receivables, JEWE FERR R EH Al
excluding prepayments EWHIBT B
(Note 18) ERFIE
(fEE18) 144,870 = = 144,870
Amount due from an associate FEU — el Bk & A A
(Note 11) I (MiE1l) 267 = = 267
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA
(Note 19) (KI%E19) - 696 - 696
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS FEY
(Note 20) (Hi%E20) 243,625 - - 243,625 139
397,901 8,528 4,323 410,752

K4 E1/10C
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 16 ZEREI»ZEMIE (&)
CATEGORY (continued)
Group
A&
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
BHE BRATETZA
BlHE BHEzZEE AEHE &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FBT FBT FET
Assets BE
At 31 March 2012 R-E—-_F=H
Sqr=[2
Available-for-sale financial asset A ENBEE
(Note 13) (BFzE13) - - 2,679 2,679
Financial assets at fair value RAFELABRR
through profit or loss (Note 14) U TEEE
(P7E14) - 14,755 = 14,755
Bonds investments (Note 15) BHERE (H5E15) 14,274 = - 14,274
Trade and other receivables, JEWE 5 BR S  E A
excluding prepayments R FIE TR
(Note 18) BRI FIE
(Br7E18) 171,792 - - 171,792
Amount due from an associate e — B & 2 Al
(Note 11) A (FFELL) 267 = = 267
Amount due from a jointly U — [ 2L B I E
controlled entity (Note 12) B (Mi7E12) 30,083 = = 30,083
Derivative financial instruments TESBMIA
(Note 19) (Br7E19) - 853 - 853
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkEEEEY
(Note 20) (Fr7E20) 143,959 - - 143,959
360,375 15,608 2,679 378,662




Notes to the Financial Statemerjtg
WK M
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 16 #HEHE P z&M IR (&)

CATEGORY (continuea)

Other financial

Group liabilities
AEHE HitBt s a s
HK$'000
FH T
Liabilities &f&E
At 31 March 2013 R—_E—Z=ZH#=ZH=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 21) FESE 5 BR 3 N H b B 1~ 3108
(K$zE21) 164,317
Bank borrowings (Note 22) IRITEE (Ki:E22) 102,459
266,776
At 31 March 2012 R-ZFE—-—HF£=H=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 21) & B 5 BR 5K N H Ath FE < 3R I8
(FFFE21) 179,872
Bank borrowings (Note 22) IRITIEE (F1:E22) 31,839
211,711
Loans and
Company Receivables
P /N EXEERRIE
HK$'000
FETT
141
Assets BE
N
8
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%#=H=+—H )
N —
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 10) JE W B 2B A Bl # 38 (T EE10) 114,054 -cﬁ)q
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) ReERBSEEY (H:E20) 7,903 o
121,957
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=F=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 10) JE L Bft B8 A &) I (B EE10) 137,832
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 20) Re KRS EEYW (K:E20) 413

138,245
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR M5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

16 ZEREI»ZEMIE (&)

Other financial

Company liabilities
b /N Hitmbt i & s
HK$'000
FHET
Liabilities =R
At 31 March 2013 R-E—==H=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 21) FERT B 5 R R R H AL FE - 5RI8
(FFzE21) 2,391
At 31 March 2012 R-EBE——F=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 21) FERTE 5 R R R H AL FE A 5RIB
(MF3E21) 2,242
17 INVENTORIES 17 &
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—F-= —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&ET FHT
Raw materials Rt 101,944 122,243
Work-in-progress =+ X mh 20,888 26,435
Finished goods B S 17,353 19,485
140,185 168,163
Less: Provision for impairment B R E RS (7,933) (7,933
132,252 160,230




17 INVENTORIES (continued)

18

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$822,686,000

(2012: HK$949,617,000).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements

AR IR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

17 5% &)

RSB RAABEERR 2T EX
A 13822,686,000/8 L (=T — —

949,617,000/ 7T ) ©

18 B E 5 Bk =0 & H tth BN IR

Group Company
rEE /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—_E—Z=F —E——F —_E—-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET F#ET FBT
Trade receivables JEWE ZERR 115,452 135,645 - =
Less: Provision for impairment R E B (3,823) (3,931) - =
Trade receivables, net FEWE 5 R FE 111,629 131,714 - =
Prepayments BRFIE 2,162 875 313 249
Rental and other deposits HeEREMES 2,770 1,560 - =
Value added tax receivables WL E R 8,593 8,960 - =
Others Hip 5,303 13,308 - -
130,457 156,417 313 249
Trade and other receivables EUWE SRR K
H e A

— current portion — & RIE8n 126,582 156,417 313 249
— non-current portion —JEREN R 1D 3,875 = - -
130,457 156,417 313 249
Long-term loan receivable KA S SRR 16,575 16,250 - -

Total trade and other receivables — FEULE 58RI & EAth
JE W SR IR 48 5 147,032 172,667 313 249

8 HET/2102
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Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EWE ZERFEH it EWFKIE

(Continued)

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

(#&)

755 B R W B 55 B R e H A WU IE 2 Bk
HESEE RN FERSE-

U E SRR Rl T

Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E—CZF
HK$'000 HK$000
F#&T FET
0 to 30 days TEx=+H 103,234 114,280
31 to 60 days =ETr=Z/iTkE 6,334 10,773
61 to 90 days ~tTt—Z=h+H 1,133 2,654
91 to 180 days ht—z=—BN+A 53 1,494
Over 180 days s =PAG =" 4,698 6,444
115,452 135,645
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (3,823) (3,931)
Trade receivables, net EUE SR FRE 111,629 131,714

The Group generally granted credit terms of 30 days to
its customers.

The credit quality of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired in the amount of
HK$103,234,000 (2012: HK$114,280,000) could be
assessed by reference to their payment history and
current financial position. These receivables relate to
a whole range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Management believes that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balance are expected
to be fully recoverable.

AEE—RETHEFPIOBZEEH-

i

7R B 2 =Xk (B B WL E 5 BR 5£103,234,000
o (2 — Z4F : 114,280,000/ 7T ) 2
EEEEA2EHBABR NI SK
TEITRHE - X S RN IH R % R EA Y
EHRACHRCEFEB-EREMRE A
REEEXTEERNEH R ZEHEHTER
AI2HWKE - RBERZELERIELRE
B o



Notes to the Financial Statements

RS IR R M R
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EWNE ZERF K HE thEU IR
(Continued) (%)
As of 31 March 2013, trade receivables of RZE—=F=H=+—H"8,395,000
HK$8,395,000 (2012: HK$17,434,000) were past due BLEZEWRESER(ZE —Z—4&F:
but not considered impaired. These relate to a number 17,434,000/ 7t ) E %1 Hi B 3R & W £ 5
of independent customers who have no recent history of B ZBRINE Z RN % 23T B &
default. The ageing of these receivables is as follows: R BLIEFER HERKERZ
ARECIAT -
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—_E—-=F —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F&T FHE T
31 to 60 days =4+—zA+H 6,334 10,773
61 to 90 days At—z=A+HE 1,133 2 654
91 to 180 days nt+—=—%"/\t+H 53 1,494
Over 180 days —BANATBEMRE 875 2,513
8,395 17,434
As of 31 March 2013, trade receivables of R—ZE—=%=H=+—H" 3,823,000
HK$3,823,000 (2012: HK$3,931,000) were considered AL (ZF— —4:3,931,000% 7T) 2 JE
impaired. The individual impaired receivables are WE GREFRRBEDIRE - BRI 2R EE
mainly related to customers which no longer have WHRIEFTZHBEARNEREEKBR
business relationship with the Group. The amount of LBREFHEB- T —=F=H=+—H
provision was HK$3,823,000 as of 31 March 2013 2 B A% 53,823,000 L (—Z T — —4F: 145
(2012: HK$3,931,000). The impairment was firstly 3,931,000/ T ) s E Rk BEE A &8k 2
assessed individually for significant or long ageing BEZEIEBY G AREERZFEZE N
balances, and the remaining balances were grouped f?ﬂ 2 MR R KR IR B AR IR B A HE R =l
for collective assessment according to their ageing RS BERBI(E - L F 2 RERWER 5
and historical default rates as these customers were AR ERERIAT g

of similar credit risk. The ageing of these impaired
receivables is as follows:




Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EWE ZERFEH it EWFKIE

(Continued) (#%&)
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E—CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Over 180 days —BN\THHUE 3,823 3,931

EUE S ERFREREESHNT

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

Group

AEH
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
At 1 April R A—H 3,931 3,626
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment WA (BE) B (128) 264
Exchange differences ME = RE 20 41
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,823 3,931

As at 31 March 2013, the trade receivables from five RZE—=F=ZA=+—H REREAE
customers accounted for approximately 57% (2012: FZEWE SEFLEWRE ZRFIBELD
55%) of the total trade receivables. The Group’s credit 57% (ZZE——4F :55% ) - REBZZE
risk management is disclosed in Note 3 to the financial [ ez 7 TR PR B S R R M B3 BR o
statements.
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W ISR M o
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EWNE ZERF K HE thEU IR
(Continued) (%)
The carrying amounts of trade receivables are JEWE SR ZREEZRN T E®ES
denominated in the following currencies:
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET AT
Hong Kong dollars BT 3,361 3,694
US dollars X 108,573 125,117
Renminbi AR 3,518 6,834
115,452 135,645
All trade receivables are either repayable within FrERKE SERFENR —FRH AR ENK
one year or on demand. During the year, the Group EE-FR- $Elﬁﬁfuﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ SR (B
recognised a reversal of HK$128,000 (2012: a provision 2128,000/8 o0 (=& ——4F : &
of HK$264,000) for impairment of its trade receivables. 264,000/ 7T ) ° th1& J/Tﬁfﬁaﬂr)\i
This revisal/provision has been included in the general WHERAN—REITHEERERET -
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

K4 E1/10C
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EWE ZERFEH it EWFKIE
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(Continued)

The Group is not aware of any credit risk on deposits,
value added tax receivables and other receivables as
their counterparties are either banks or government
or corporation or individual with good credit ratings.
The majority of these financial assets are neither past
due nor impaired and there is no history of default.
The carrying amount of deposits, value added tax
receivables and other receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

(#&)

REBEW FREHES  BUOEER MH
W HRIBE AR AEERR  RERRXS
HAEHRRITHBNFKEB RIFEENR
ZRARAHMBA - ZETBEEARNBHHR
FIEASORE - X \IE R - 1RE - BIK
RED R EMERFKIE REERATE
W ok e

nA ot

Group

KEE
2013 2012

—E-= —_ET—-

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Hong Kong dollars BT 711 6,968
Renminbi AR 29,175 27,280
US dollars ETT 1,312 5,813
Euro BX 7T 2,043 =
Others HAb - 17
33,241 40,078

The long-term loan receivable represents a
loan to a third party of RMB13,000,000 (2012:
RMB13,000,000) (equivalent to HK$16,575,000
(2012: HK$16,250,000)). Such loan bears interest at
6% per annum and is payable on 15 November 2014.
The loan is secured by the pledge of a property located
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and a
98.81% equity interest in a PRC incorporated company,
which is engaged in educational consultancy services.

EHERBURZEARETFE=Z2MNER
AR#13,000000L (ZFE——F: AR
#513,000,0007T) (4% 116,575,000
T (ZF— % :16,250,000/87C) ) - &
HERIRSFOEMNFIERTEFE IR =
T—MFE+—F+RHBEEHEE - EFRU
BHURPEAREIME ([FE])HD
2N —FREPEFEMKIORR (HEK
B E BB R ) 1998 .81 %A AN 1EA
I o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

In addition to this long-term loan receivable, the Group
has also entered into an option agreement with the
borrower which gives the Group the right to acquire
25% equity interests in certain British Virgin Islands
(“BVI") incorporated companies which are engaged
in trading of self-developed social network systems
and the provision of related services. These BVI
incorporated companies are 100% beneficially owned
by the borrower.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting
date is the fair value of each class of receivables
as mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security, except for the long-term loan

18 fEUE 5 AR =k & H tt B IR

(%)

B R B E BB WGRIA SN - AN B B R A
MEET SRR EeTASEE
Mo ARBETRREBRELES ([RER
KRS ) iR AL 2 R R Z25% B - T
ZEARNEEEBTHENHLRIBER R
BRI EEARE ZEN KBRS
AWM ARHERAZEERER -

REREBBzESEERRKR A L
BHEEWHRTEZ N FE - NEBE W &
BEEMEARERE ERBEREK
RIEH16,575,0008 L (=T — = F:

receivable of approximately HK$16,575,000 (2012: 16,250,000 7T ) B Jh ©
HK$16,250,000).
19 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 19 T4 &M I A
INSTRUMENTS
Group
AEH
2013 2012
—F-=f —T——F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE a BE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 149
FET FHET FATT FATT
Forward foreign exchange contracts = 2i9ME & 49 696 - 853 =

The notional principal amounts of the forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2013 were
US$6,000,000 (2012: US$5,500,000).

The Group’s forward foreign exchange contracts will
expire in April 2013, May 2013 and April 2014. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March
2013 was the fair value of the derivative assets in the
consolidated balance sheet.

EHIMNESHN _T—=F=HA=+—H
Z BEREFR6,000,000% T (ZF—=
% :5,500,000% 7T ) °

AEBABIESWHN - —=FD
A —F-ZERAR-F-MEMAR
WeR—F-=F=A=+—-BZBHR
SRR ARG AAERRRZITEAED
FE-

8 HET/2102
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERBEEE%EY

Group Company
& b /N

2013 2012 2013 2012
5= —E—-F CZE-=Zf <=7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FHET &
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERSE 243,625 137,684 7,903 413
Short-term bank deposits WHRITIF K - 6,275 - =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 243,625 143,959 7,903 413

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the HehBESEEBMENTEKESR

following currencies:

Group Company
rE VNN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—_E—Z=fF —E——F —_E-=fK —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT TFET FATT
Hong Kong dollars BT 17,676 16,288 454 27
US dollars ETT 129,195 96,532 7,438 370
Renminbi ARE 96,376 30,834 - =
Other currencies H g 378 305 11 16
243,625 143,959 7,903 413

R-ZE—=F=A=+—"H RBITEX
CEBENRAFFE0I% (ZT— 4

As at 31 March 2013, the effective interest rate on bank
deposits was 0.9% (2012: 1.4%) per annum. The bank
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deposits of the Group have an average maturity of 85
days (2012: 30 days).

The conversion of bank balances and cash of the
Group denominated in Renminbi into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland Chinese
Government.

1.4%) - A&EE 2 RITFRZFHEHH
R85R (ZF—=F:30K) °

AEBUARBHEZRITESRNER L
MR SNE 2 iR AR B BBUF R Z I
FEE & 1 45 51 K% AR 7E P BR 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 EFHE SERMA R HE thEFKIE
Group Company
rEH VN
2013 2012 2013 2012
5= === —5-=f T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Trade payables [ E SRR 121,938 159,115 - =
Salaries and staff welfare payable &% 4 & 8 TE7| 9,759 11,221 - =
Accrued expenses Bt E A 4,073 3,996 2,391 2,242
Others HA 10,952 5,540 - -
Trade and other payables N E ZRT K
— current portion HoAth & - 30IR
— BIERER 15 146,722 179,872 2,391 2,242
Other non-current payables H I BN ER pE A
(Note c) A (MisEc) 17,595 - - =
Total trade and other payables ERE SRR REM
FE TRIR B HE 164,317 179,872 2,391 2,242
(@) The ageing of the trade payables is as follows: (a) ENEZRERZRESTAT:
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET 151
0 to 30 days EE2=+H 114,644 144,174 N
31 to 60 days =+—%xt+H 1,006 7,723 5
61 to 90 days NRT—ZEATH 608 1,159 =
91 to 180 days h+—=—BNTH 559 2619 W
Over 180 days —BNA+BE 5,121 3,440 =
121,938 159,115
The fair values of the Group’s trade and other AEERENE SRR & E MR

payables approximate their carrying values. He A TFEEERAEBERS -
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IS HRE M 7T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 EHESRAREMEMNKE
(Continued) (#%&)
(@) (Continued) (@ (#&)
The carrying amounts of trade payables are ENESZERZEEAEBERATER
denominated in the following currencies: HEE
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T TET
Hong Kong dollars BT 15,507 19,417
US dollars ETT 93,932 121,192
Renminbi AR #& 12,499 18,501
Other currencies H b &k - 5
121,938 159,115
(b) The carrying amounts of other payables are (b) HihENREBEZEREEKRATER
denominated in the following currencies: wHE
Group Company
rEH y /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f T Z—F-=§ —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHT FAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 6,239 6,293 2,391 2,242
Renminbi ARE 33,848 14,342 - =
US dollars ETT 2,282 122 - =
Other currencies Hin & 10 = - =
42,379 20,757 2,391 2,242
(c) In connection with the disposal of 100% equity (c) FHEERUGLZ100%M% # (H &
interests in UGL (Note 7), the Group had 7)mE AKEEBE A WREIE
received deposits of RMB13,800,000 (equivalent £ AR #13,800,0007T (FEZ R4
to approximately HK$17,595,000) from the 17,595,0005 7T ) °

purchaser.
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facilities of approximately HK$437,667,000 (2012:
HK$349,839,000) for overdrafts, loans and trade
financing.

Unused facilities at the same date amounted
to approximately HK$312,566,000 (2012:
HK$299,285,000). These facilities are secured by:

(a) certain land and buildings (Note 6) of the Group
with the carrying amount of HK$45,590,000
(2012: HK$46,914,000).

(b) corporate guarantees provided by the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries.

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by certain banks.

B IS RR M v
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE
22 BANK BORROWINGS 22 RITHEE
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FETT
Non-current EREB
Long-term bank borrowings RHERITEE 102,459 31,839
Less: current portion of long-term bank & : REFSRITEE R H
borrowings (16,927) (9,376)
85,532 22,463
Curent xk® B e
Current portion of long-term bank RERITEER 52X
borrowings 16,927 9,376
Total borrowings BB 102,459 31,839
The terms of borrowings are as follows: BER TSI HAMEIHE
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—_E—=F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FH&IT
Within one year —FR 16,927 9,376
In the second year E-F 37,794 4,412
Between 2 and 5 years —EFEFEERF 41,091 8,453
Over 5 years FFE 6,647 9,508
102,459 31,839
At 31 March 2013, the Group has aggregate banking RZ=E _E A=+—8 Xx&EH

FX BERNEIREERITEER
%A 49437 ,667 ooo%ﬁ(:?—:iz
349,839, 0005 7T) ©

[ H 2 REARE4312,566,000 7T (=

T — — £ :299,285,000 7T) c @A AT

51|18 B e

(a) ANEBEBRMEEA45,590,0008 7T (=
T — — 4 : 46,914,000/ ) 7 & T
T RAEF (HIFE6) o

by AARREETHEARREZA
AR

B EatE N REB R BB

mz&E HE&%IJHM&*”;*

HTiRITHE

8 HET/2102
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IS HRE M 7T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
22 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 22 RiITe&#®)
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate AEERBEEH 2 MEEFHRABRLREHNE
changes and the contractual repricing dates were as ¥EE BT :
follows:
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET-F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TER F#HET
6 months or less NE A ST 3,042 4 682
7 to 12 months +tZ=+=_{@A 13,885 4,694
1 to 5 years —Z T4 78,886 12,865
Over 5 years FF E 6,646 9,598
102,459 31,839
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date REER ZEBRRMERNT
were as follows:
Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—E—=f —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FER FHET
N Trust receipt bank loans SRERBIRITER NAT & R 1.1%
5E Other bank borrowings HipRITIRE 2.2% 1.3%
< —
S [wh=
e —— o
o GZDE As all the bank borrowings were at floating interest MREIHRITEERZENE  BEEERA
S [l rates, the carrying amounts of the borrowings BEEQNTERSE  mEBPERITIRET
SI== approximate their fair values and all balances are HI{E -
\S) :|:‘_>| denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
o |le)
U=
g
—
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gy N
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23 IEEREFH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset RIEFTSMEENAEREE A HKIERTT
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off NEMIEEEHIEE AN IEAE &R
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and BREFSHER -V BEEE@ BN
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same T - HEH B RELN T
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
Group
AEEH
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FBTT
Deferred income tax assets: BTSRRI EE
— Deferred income tax asset to be —@+ @A E’YE
recovered after more than 12 months EIEFTSIE E (3,524) (3,665)
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFMEHEE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —Et+ @ HREEZ
settled after more than 12 months BIEFEHAaE 5,759 2,807

The movement in the net deferred income tax liabilities/
(assets) account is as follows:

ERELEREHAaE/ (BE)FR2E
BT

Group
AERE
2013 2012
—_F-= —E—_4F 155
HK$’000 HK$' 000
F&ET FHT o
8
Q
At 1 April REA—H (858) 387 o
Deferred income tax liability recognised i Ug B8 F 12 | g
from acquisition of remaining equity ERMARTREMERZ
interests in the jointly-controlled entity BEFEHR AR (M5E41)
(Note 41) 4,252 -
Credited to consolidated income statement 7474 Uezs &R 5T A
(Note 32) (Ff3E32) (1,159) (1,245)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 2,235 (858)




Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
BT ER R M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 23 IBEEEREH (2

BEEFMSHREENRERFRAZES (K
At R R — B BAE R 5 2 %) 40

The movement in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities during the year, without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same
tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

T

Intangible assets Accelerated tax depreciation Total
BREE MERERE &t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“%-Zf _T-_F -z _T-_F "F-Zf _T-_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL T THL T FHL
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMEHAR
At 1 April WA—H - - 2,832 2,398 2,832 2,398
Deferred income tax liability FUELREHER
recognised from the acquisition of 2 8 TIEM R Z
remaining equity interests inthe  EEFEHBE
jointly-controlled entity (Note 41) ~ (Fiz41) 4,252 - - - 4,252 =
(Credited)/charged to consolidated  R&A WER (GtA)
income statement /i (780) = (572) 434 (1,352) 434
At 31 March W=A=1+—H 3,472 - 2,260 2,832 5,732 2,832
Decelerated tax depreciation Tax loss Total
HERERE REBH Ll
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
_%-z§% —Z-_—-% "§-=f —B-_F §-= “E-F
]_ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
I% TR THL TR FHL T T
=Cs
> Deferred income tax assets ERFEHEE
C;DU ZE e T E E
S 2=
i ,_% At 1 April WEA—H (184) (224) (3,506) (1,787) (3,690) (2,011)
=== Charged/(credited) to consolidated A& KEZ MK/
~ :; income statement (3T A) (771) 40 964 (1,719) 193 (1,679)
w SQ —
jZ> At 31 March W=A=1—H (955) (184) (2,542) (3,506) (3,497) (3,690)
=
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE
23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 23 EEREH (2)
As at 31 March 2013, the Group has unrecognised RZE—=FE=A=+—8 i &FEHE
tax losses of HK$214,000 (2012: HK$363,000) for mmE (MEAEER) NEBER
Hong Kong profits tax purposes, which have no expiry, KRR IBEE214,0008 L (-2 ——
and unrecognised tax losses of HK$5,411,000 (2012: F 1 363,000 7T ) © BLAR B K BE D E TS
HK$4,040,000) for the Mainland Chinese corporate MME @ KRR IEEEA5,411,000%
income tax which will expire during year 2012 to year 70 ( ZZF— =4 : 4,040,00077T) © WK
2016. No deferred tax assets have been recognised for TR CHEFEET—NEFEIH-
these tax losses as the directors consider that it is not HRNEERAER=HA0 gl erNaT R
probable that the temporary difference will be reversed AR DE - W B Z SR IEEERERE
in the foreseeable future. ERRIBEEE
24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 B 7K
Number of
shares Nominal value
B#nE R B% 7 H B
‘000 HK$'000
F A% TFET
Authorised - ordinary shares of AE - SRmEELETZ
HK$0.1 each T im AR 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of B 21T R&E —FREE
HK$0.1 each 0.18 Lz L@k
At 1 April 2011 H-E——&#mA—H 071,744 027,174
Issue of shares upon exercise of R AR TR EITIRGD
share options (Note) (P aE) 550 55 157
At 31 March 2012 and at 31 March 2013 WR=-Z— -4 = A
=t—BRZZE—=F o
=H=+—H 272,294 27,229 5
=
&
Note: B 5T #H
During the year ended 31 March 2012, 550,000 ordinary shares HE-ZT——F=A=1+—HILFE BRER
of HK$0.1 each were issued upon the exercise of share options HE JE 17 {58 B 32 77550,000% & A% I {EO. 1B T 2

(Note 25). A% (PE5E25) ©




€1/210g Moday [enuuy |
d3LIANTIT SONIATTOH

TYNOILYNHILINI YONS

Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

25 SHARE OPTIONS

25 B

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 6 August 2012. Pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
share options to certain grantees (including directors
and employees) of the Group to subscribe for shares of
the Company. The maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under this Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted
by the Group shall not exceed 30 per cent of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The
subscription price will be determined by the directors,
and will not be less than the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of
granting the options and the average of the closing
prices of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
granting the options.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
during the year are as follows:

ARBR-ZT——F\ANBERABK
st al ([T ) - RIRBBEST
2 ARRAAAEEETEARA (B
EZREE)UERBREARE AR AR
10 o IR RS B AT 8 R AN SR B RN 2 (]
H b R AT 81 b R M R T T 2 P %
TTHEINBERAEETER A RERIT 2 &P K
MER  TRBEARARNKDEITHRA
30% RBERHEFEET «EIIR
(e SIRBERE XS B E BRHD

56 32 P PR U T 1B S E R R AR HE R B
HA R T2 5 B B A8 32 P BT R 15 1
mE (A&xmERE) -

FRMRITEBRIERE Z2BNT

2013 2012
—F-=f T F

Average Average

exercise exercise
price in HK$ Number of ~ price in HK$ Number of
per share options per share options

BHRZTEH Bikz T
BRLITEE EREHE BITITEE RS
'000 '000
Fi T
At 1 April RN A—H 1.323 1,587 1.008 1,705
Granted during the year FRERE - 1.750 432
Exercised BT - 0.682 (550)
Lapsed B AR 1.145 (55) -
Lapsed B AR 1.750 (46) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,486 1,687
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25 SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 25 FERZHE (&)
As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, all the R-_E—=F=ZA=+—HBk-_Z—=
outstanding options were fully vested and exercisable, F=ZA=+—H FBRKRTHEZBERE
except 990,000 (2012: 1,045,000) options granted on EREFEBYAITHE ER_T—TF
3 June 2010 and 386,000 (2012: 432,000) options ANA=BEHE 2990000 (2B ——4:
granted on 21 October 2011, which have vesting 1,045,000) 17 &% P 4 2 5% 8 H B3.584F -
periods of 3.58 years and 3 years respectively, and are R-_E—=F+_-_A=+—HHATT
only exercisable on 31 December 2013 and 21 October F-mMR=_E——F+A=+—BAREZ
2014 respectively. 386,000 ( =& — =4 : 432,000) 17 B& I 1
ZHRBHAE RN_T—NE+A-+—
HARI{T{E -
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have RELRITEBRE DA REITHE
the following expiry dates and exercise prices: (N
Number of options Vested percentages
Exercise BRERAE BEAENI
Expiry date price 2013 2012 2013 2012
B A fTE —-%F-=f —T-_§F °"F-Zf T _F
HK$ '000 '000
BT T4 T4
Employees E&
28 April 2015 “Z-RAFfNA-FNR 1.331 110 110 100% 100%
2 June 2015 “2-R%~AZH 1.145 990 1,045 79% 47%
21 October 2016 Z-R"¥t+AZ+—A 1.750 386 432 47% 14%
1,486 1,587

8 HET/2102
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26 RESERVES 26 f#*&

Group
PN 3
Share-  Available-
based for-sale
Capital compen- financial
Share reserve sation asset  Exchange Retained
premium  (Note (a)) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
A HE
BAGEE UROXN HBEE
RiVEE (M) Mo #E EXRE RERA A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THER THT TET THER THT THET
At 1 April 2011 —Z——fMmA—H 63,387 10,591 195 275 36,316 264,020 374,784
Exchange difference arising on 2 E /&N B A RIFTE £
translation of foreign B AR
subsidiaries - - - - 4,995 - 4,995
Fair value loss on an available- At HEMBEE 2
for-sale financial asset ATEEE - - - (275) - - (275)
Exchange reserve released P &GN B A Al
upon disposal of a foreign B2 E R

subsidiary - - - - (430) - (430)
Employee share option scheme: {& 8 B fRiEsT2):

Value of employee services EERBEE = = 125 = = = 125
Proceeds from shares issued 1T BB IRIERFZ1TRAD
upon exercise of options LA 320 = - = = = 320

TR B R

Transfer of reserve upon

exercise of options 71 - (71) - - - -
Profit for the year FR@H - - - - - 93,252 93,252
Dividends paid BEIRRE - - - - - (62,628) (62,628)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-Z%£=H
? TWwm Eqr=F 63,778 10,591 249 - 40,881 294,644 410,143
(@
2 [t
S (@p Representing: HER:
22 == Proposed dividend BRI E 27,229
B 8—1 Others it 267,415
3 [Tl
Ny — O _—
8 sz> 294,644
N—TH
s —
w SQ
=
>
—
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE
26 RESERVES (continued) 26 f## 2
Group
3 |
Share-  Available-
based for-sale
Capital compen- financial
Share reserve sation asset  Exchange Retained
premium  (Note (a)) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

AHHE

BAfE URBXH HMBEE
RpEE (@) MeHE e ERRE KREEA CEl
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Ti#En T#x Ti#En TER T#x Ti#Ex TER

At 1 April 2012 W—E——FNA—H 63,778 10,591 249 - 40,881 294,644 410,143
Exchange difference arising ~ #BEEINNB LRI FESE
on translation of foreign BHESE
subsidiaries - - - - 2,527 - 2,527
Fair value gain on an available- A/ {HEHBEE 2
for-sale financial asset A EK R - - - 1,644 - - 1,644
Employee share option scheme: {& 8 B A=t 21:
Value of employee services ~ EERBE 2 BE - - 164 - - - 164
Profit for the year FRmA - - - - - 77,841 77,841
Dividends paid BEIRRE - - - - - (46,290)  (46,290)
At 31 March 2013 WNZE—-Z%ZH
Sar=[E 63,778 10,591 413 1,644 43,408 326,195 446,029
Representing: HER:
Proposed dividend RS 19,061
Others Hity 307,134
326,195 161
Note: Bt 5 - B :
o
(@) The capital reserve of the Group includes the difference (a) AEEEAFEEBER-_ZZ=_FNAR =
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by BAEBEERBEBRGRIBRARRFTETT fﬁ%
the Company and the aggregate amount of the share capital T AR A B AT U AR B A B 2 AR AR R AR e
and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an D BRER 5.

exchange of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
in September 2002.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE
26 RESERVES (continuea) 26 f#E(#)
Company
v/
Share-
based
Contributed compen-
Share surplus sation Retained
premium  (note (b)) reserve earnings Total
GRS UROI
BoEE  (MEb) #HekE REEF AFf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT THT THEI
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FNA—H 63,387 64,872 195 48,895 177,349
Employee share option scheme: EEREREE:
Value of employee services EERKEE - = 125 = 125
Proceeds from shares issued TR EE AR BT
upon exercise of options Bin 2 FiiS R 320 = = = 320
Transfer of reserve upon 17150 8 R e iy 8
exercise of options & 71 = (71) - -
Profit for the year F R 7l - = - 59,949 59,949
Dividends paid 2R E - - - (62,628) (62,628)
At 31 March 2012 RIB-Z%
=ZB=1t—-H 63,778 64,872 249 46,216 175,115
Representing: HER:
Proposed dividend ORI S 27,229
Others Hi 18,987
46,216
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

26 f#1E (#)

Company
b NG|
Share-
based
Contributed compen-
Share surplus sation Retained
premium  (note (b)) reserve earnings Total
BNB& B
BRIEE (D) #HeEE HRERH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
At T April 2012 RZZE——FMA—H 63,778 64,872 249 46,216 175,115
Employee share option scheme: EEHERETE:

Value of employee services EER%E2EE - - 164 - 164
Profit for the year FRREH - - - 29,918 29,918
Dividends paid 2Rk E - - - (46,290)  (46,290)
At 31 March 2013 RIE—=%

=A=+-H 63,778 64,872 413 29,844 158,907
Representing: HER:
Proposed dividend RS 19,061
Others Hi 10,783
29,844
Note: BT EE
(b)  Contributed surplus represents the difference between the (b) BARRIBERIMATEITRG 2 EEH 163

nominal amount of shares issued and the book value of the
underlying net assets of subsidiaries acquired in return.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

PRUCEEM B A RIAER R EEREE £/ -

REBEARE-NN\—FRRDE  BARRA
DK T AR MR IA T REFER - Blfiw B
BABRRE RN RS HAEL 2K ()
ARE B ATRAEH 2 IRE EAEEHE
HeE HHEEZTEREERRHEE
& EE BT M a B 2 #70 Bl
BIEL AR IK-

8 HET/2102
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27 REVENUE 27 &
The Group is principally engaged in the research and AEETENEETFER EERBRBE
development, manufacture and sales of electronic miffE R RERIEE XK - F AR
products, moulds and plastic products. Revenues R W=

recognised during the year are as follows:

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FETT

Sales of goods BEYEERE
— electronic products —BTER 1,075,368 1,193,273
— moulds and plastic products —EERBRBEM 32,120 48,724
1,107,488 1,241,997

28 OTHER INCOME 28 H g

2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FETT
Scrap sales FERLSHE 692 1,381
Others Hib - 205
692 1,586
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HILFE
29 OTHER GAINS, NET 29 Hiwlg i 28
2013 2012
—E—Z=f ===
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets &2 A F{EE A B2 2 B 7%
at fair value through profit or loss BEZANFERZE
(E18) 686 (718)
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale  A] 4t i & B % & E R E
financial asset (Note 13) 518 (MizE13) - (1,196)
Net foreign currency exchange gain PE 0 U8 55 0% RE 5,281 3,350
Fair value (loss)/gain on derivative MESBMTAZAYE
financial instruments (B1E), W= (157) 355
Net realised gain on derivative PTESMTAZ#RKE
financial instruments HER 2,825 2,243
Gain on remeasurement of previously BHFER —FEXR
held equity interest in a jointly THIBRAAFAZ
controlled entity (Note 41) AeRE 2 Wass (FfF7E41) 8,908 =
Others H A 52 -
17,595 4,034

M4 ET1/c10C
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

30 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and
selling expenses and general and administrative
expenses are analysed as follows:

30 HEHE S ZHX

APASHERA  DHNMEHEERA R —&K
MTBERER AW :

2013 2012
—_E—ZF —=E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHE T
Cost of inventories FERKA 822,686 949,617
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment Y BEMEEITE
— owned assets —-BEEE 14,917 13,753
Amortisation of land use rights - Hb {55 R e 5 988 137
Amortisation of intangible asset I\ & B 5 4,724 =
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEYE BERXREZ
plant and equipment (Wz) /B8 (16) 4
Operating lease rental of premises BFz7ELE0ES 5,748 5,407
Employee benefit expense (including BTITRNAZ (BREES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 36) ) (MI5E36) 133,578 127,350
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of ~ FEUWE ZERFURE (#E )~
trade receivables B (128) 264
Auditor's remuneration % ELED BN 2,455 2,116
Other expenses HEMRAZ 59,017 49,007
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling #HEKA D RIEEE R
expenses and general and administrative AN —f RITHREEE R
expenses 4B =E 1,043,969 1,147,655
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
31 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE 31 BN ERBER A&
COSTS
2013 2012
—F—-= —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Interest income from: KE TIETZHEUWA -
— bank deposits —RITFER 1,681 2,171
— bonds investments —EFRE 1,029 1,053
— others —HAM 1,591 -
Finance income BE WA 4,301 3,224
Interest expense on: W Fxmmer#e:
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —ERAFTFANBHEEZ
within five years RITEE (2,425) (1,343)
Finance income — net mE WA —F5E 1,876 1,881
32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 32 FhiBHEAX
(A) BERMUDA AND BRITISH VIRGIN (A) BRENEBELESHED
ISLANDS INCOME TAX
The Company is exempted from taxation in ARNaBE_Z— A "FRRHERE
Bermuda until 2016. The Company’s subsidiaries ERB - ARRRABRELEE ZH
in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated under BRAINBRERBREZHSEERE
the International Business Acts of the British AT MAAL - At e R B B
Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted SFTEH 167
from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.
N
(B) HONG KONG PROFITS TAX (B) BFEAEFIEH =
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the EBHERAKEEI6S% (ZF—= @
rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated F:16.5% ) LA FE G ERT R g

assessable profits for the year. B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(C)

(D)

MAINLAND CHINESE CORPORATE
INCOME TAX

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“SESL"),
Suga Networks Equipment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“SNESL"), Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd (“PSSL”) and Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling and
Plastic Injection (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“Nodic”) are
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. All
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to corporate income tax at 25% effective
from 1 January 2008.

MACAO TAXATION

P&S Macao Commercial Offshore Limited is a
subsidiary established in Macao and is exempted
from Macao Complementary Tax.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

32 hBHEX @)
(C) RBEEFEH

EEEFORIDBERRR ([EE
BF]) EEBKSEM CRIDBER
NE([EERGSM]) HEER
CRIDBERAR (AEEXR]) B8
HW—mAEELTE (BMN)BRAF]
(TRE A1) 5 e B R BE R SZ 2 Y BB
NCIRRN S Sesle i NGl )
ARB-TTN\F—A—HEAR
25% 2 R EEMEH -

(D) JRFIFIAE
BERMMFEERFTBERIAS
PORFIRALZ B A B RBURFI AT
FRIER

BiRe WS R MR <RI :

2013 2012
—E—= —F——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FHET

Current income tax: EHIFTEH
— Hong Kong profits tax — BB NFH 7,272 10,424
— Income tax outside Hong Kong —BBRINTET 2,613 3,274
— Over-provision in prior years —BEFERERE (3,362) (3,696)
Deferred income tax (Note 23) EREFTIS T (M aE23) (1,159) (1,245)
5,364 8,757
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32 IBHEXZ 2

AEBEBRFABRANG M 2 ISR EAES
ARG E 2 BwmSBEATR F15

32 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax on the Group's profit before income
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows: mr:
2013 2012
—E—=f —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T TET
Profit before income tax B FT 13 3% A& A 82,817 101,843
Calculated at a taxation rate of #165% (ZFE—
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) 16.5% ) iRt & 13,665 16,804
Effect of different income tax rates BEABBEINTEE WA
on income arising outside TRIMGHE2ZE
Hong Kong (209) 766
Tax loss not recognised RIERTIEEE 1,069 508
Expenses not deductible for IRyl 53
income tax purpose 2,200 657
Income not subject to income tax WA MTS T 2 WA (7,974) (2,538)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBRERE (3,362) (3,696)
Recognition of tax loss R BEE - (2,057)
Utilisation of previously FABAERERTIEBE
unrecognised tax losses (25) (1,687)
Income tax expense TS fi X 5,364 8,757

There is no tax charge relating to components of other

comprehensive income.

MEHA L EEBEEBRATRR G-

8 HET/2102
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Notes to the !—‘inancial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

33 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of a profit of approximately HK$29,918,000
(2012: HK$59,949,000).

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(A) BASIC

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

33 AARAHEAAERTDH

RRBHEA ARG E $ 429,918,000
7T (ZF— % : 59,949,000/ 7T ) B 51
AR DB EREK -

34 BREF

(A) EK
IR A BFITIRAR A AT
R PR DA RO B B T EBAR 2 A1
B LREGHE

2013 2012
—FT-=f —F—=
Profit attributable to owners NAEHER AEML
of the Company (HK$'000) w A (FET) 77,841 93,252
Weighted average number of BERaTERmETy 0000
ordinary shares in issue ('000) Argr (Fi%) 272,294 272,164
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RREARZF (L) 28.59 34.26
(B) DILUTED (B) #5%

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares which is the share options
granted to employees. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

SREERNTINREAAE TS
BEEAREBENER NEBET
FEINE BARNHE F AR BM AT H o A
REE—REBEHEL B AR
BROZEBRE IERENS A
BAET B VIR FT A M 0 R 1T 8 BB A e
RBRzeEBERGE BER
BATHE (ARR R RS FEHER
BIBAZRMEE o LA Bt )5 A5
BZBRDHB S EBRRBEIERET
EmDABRTHROBB LR -
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34 §REMN &)
(B) ## ()

34 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(B) DILUTED (Continued)

2013 2012
—_E-—-= ==
Profit attributable to owners VNN E P =N
of the Company (HK$'000) sF (FET) 77,841 93,252
Weighted average number of D E&{TE@mmgErs
ordinary shares in issue ('000) A& (F%) 272,294 272,164
Adjustments for share options ('000) MR (F17) 430 642
Weighted average number of ordinary SR & &7 > =@l
shares for diluted earnings per IREFHRRE (F%)
share ('000) 272,724 272,806
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) & & &8 2 7 (7510) 28.54 34.18
35 DIVIDENDS 35 i 2
2013 2012
HK$ 000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Interim dividend, paid, of HK7.0 cents Bk 7P HA % B I i R
(2012: HK7.0 cents) per ordinary share 708 (ZF—=%F:
7.07%4) 19,061 19,061
Final dividend, proposed, of HK7.0 cents  ##)& 7 B I 2. 75 A% & 38 A%
(2012: HK10.0 cents) per ordinary share ~ 7.058{ll (=& — =4 :
10.07841) 19,061 27,229
38,122 46,290
At a meeting held on 25 June 2013, the directors E"fg— —#XH= —i—ﬁ BRTzE
proposed the payment of a final dividend of HK7.0 mIL EEERMEBE_T—=F=H

cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2013.
Such dividends are to be approved by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting on 8 August 2013.
These proposed dividends are not reflected as a
dividend payable in the financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of distributable reserves in
the year ending 31 March 2014.

_-f— EJJ:@EAEHEEHHng FX7.07%

fill - B B

X /En HTIE/\\—

—=F/\RANRZ

RERIB S RE EEIRRILE - FKAL S

AR HRE R B EIKRE
—FE=A=1T—HIFEZ

REE

—-=

AR IRFEE DK ©

HE 7S S R

8 HET/2102




> Eud
4°6
-
P —
S 9
S 2
N
~=
- —
ool
)

TYNOILYNHILINI VO

Notes to the Financial Statements

ARGk I 5

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

36 EIRMAX (BEEEME)

EMOLUMENTS)
2013 2012
—F—=f —T-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FETT
Wages and salaries TEREH® 120,931 114,657
Bonus TEAT 2,516 3,903
Staff welfare S TEA 5,931 5,041
Share-based compensation expenses AR (1<) 3% 2R B 7 =2 164 125
Unutilised annual leave RIEEUE R 35 197
Pension costs — defined contribution plans &K 4 B 78 — iE 58  Z T2 4,001 3,427
133,578 127,350

(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of every director for the year
ended 31 March 2013 is set out below:

(A) BEXEMELRSREEABFM
BHE_ZT—=F=A=+—HIL*F
ERELZEREZMEEIWT

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme  Share-based Total
Fees benefits contributions compensation  emoluments
H5&R RIRER B A3 4 3%
g HiigH) s N MEEs
Executive director: HTEE:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman and R B Z18+ (/&R
Chief Executive Officer) T #8%) - 3,300 330 - 3,630
Mr. Ma Fung On BERLE - 1,452 73 - 1,525
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Lee Kam Hung EX 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executve B FHITES:
director:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, &= 1%
Joshua 240 - - - 240
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven ~ 2F#5L 4 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRARLE 180 - - - 180
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 36 ETHEINAXZ (BREEEME)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (#)
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
(A) DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR A) EEHEREREEAB T
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)
The emoluments of every director for the year BE-_ZE——F=A=+—HIHF
ended 31 March 2012 is set out below: EXZBEEZMEHT T :
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme  Share-based Total
Fees benefits  contributions compensation  emoluments
ek RINEF Bt 143
e H fth 13 7 A&t ER R & & 5t
Executive director: HITES:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman and REZ 18+ (F/E R
Chief Executive Officer) TR %) - 3,175 318 - 3,493
Mr. Ma Fung On BERLE - 1,397 70 - 1,467
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Lee Kam Hung FRELE 180 - = - 180
Independent non-executive  BIUIFEHITES:
director:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, =@
Joshua 240 - - - 240
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven ~ RF#85E 4% 180 - - - 180
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BAEEE 180 - - - 180
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS B) AE&m=FHMAL 173
The five individuals whose emoluments were RAFEE NEBREREEH A
the highest in the Group for the year included TEEMA(ZE——F WB)E
two (2012: two) directors whose emoluments EFEZMEER LM DR R S
are reflected in the analysis presented above. -FARAEMESB =R (ZT—= N
The emoluments payable to the remaining three F:ZH)ALTZEBEMT =
(2012: three) individuals during the year are as _ﬁ
follows: HH
2013 2012
—_E—=%5 B4
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHEIT
Basic salaries, allowances and ARz EZUREMEY
other benefits in kind & A 4,650 4,775
Contribution to retirement scheme iR {R&H2I#t 5% 165 157

4,815 4,932
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR M5
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

36 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

36 EIRMAX (BREEME)
(#&)

(B) AEmZEHMAL (&)
e FIATEE :

Number of individuals

A#
2013 2012
—FE—=F —E——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Emolument bands B < &5 [E
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,008t &
1,500,000/% 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% L&
2,500,0007% 7T 1 1
3 3

No emoluments were paid to the directors or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.
No directors or the five highest paid individuals
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year.

ARBINFAMBRAESTRNALR
SEHMA LTS - EARSIEN
BN EINB AN B 2 SRR SR
BHE-FA MBEEFRAERS
FA T HEXRBERETMAME -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
37 CASH GENERATED FROM 37 REEFEEZR&E
OPERATIONS
Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated F N H) B AR S E ISP E IR € ¥ AR U0
from operations as follows: ™~
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#HxT F#ET
Profit for the year F Nz A 77,453 93,086

Adjustments for: R

— Income tax expense — TS HiRAX 5,364 8,757

— Finance income —EE WA (4,301) (3,224)

— Finance cost — R & AR 2,425 1,343

— Depreciation of property, —E - -BEERETE
plant and equipment 14,917 13,753

— Amortisation of land use rights — o b {55 PR R 4 6 988 137

— Amortisation of intangible asset — |8 ER 4,724 =

— (Gain)/loss on disposals of property, —HNEME BEREE
plant and equipment 2 (Wezs) /EiE (16) 4

— Share based compensation expenses — B0 15 SR 3R BN B =2 164 125

— Fair value loss/(gain) on derivative —TESRITAY
financial instruments N EEES

(%z) 157 (355)

— Fair value (gain)/loss on financial - AVFEZRABEZ
assets at fair value through MR EEZ A AFE
profit or loss (k=) EBE (686) 718

— Impairment loss of available-for-sale — A EM B EE 175
financial assets VERIEN SR - 1,196

— Share of loss of an associate — 5 — A& AR EE 865 —

— Gain on remeasurement of previously — —E¥FFtER —EHLRF 5
held equity interest in the jointly THIBEAEE -
controlled entity el 3 el & (8,908) - _cﬁ%

93,146 115,540 =
Changes in working capital: LEECED:
— Inventories —FE 27,978 (5,168)
— Trade and other receivables —EKE SRR K
H At U FRIR 56,912 (12,014)

— Amount due from a jointly — JE Y — RS FE R
controlled entity TR IE 30,083 (3,971)

— Trade and other payables — B SR & EA

JE{F 7B (86,729) 10,249

Cash generated from operations KEEBELE RS 121,390 104,636
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37 CASH GENERATED FROM 37 REXEFEEZTRE (&)
OPERATIONS (continued)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEYE MERXEZMEHRAEBIE:

equipment comprise:

2013 2012
—F-=f —E—CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Net book value (Note 6) BREDF(E (Fi5E6) 8 4
Gain/(loss) on disposals of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment sk, (E8) 16 (4)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment B 15 F A 24 _
38 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 38 BAHIER
As at 31 March 2013, the Company had provided RZE—=F=HA=+—H ARQA
guarantees in respect of banking facilities of MEKNBRARZETEERMES X
its subsidiaries amounting to approximately #437,667,0008 0 (=& — = F:
HK$437,667,000 (2012: HK$349,839,000). 349,839,000/ 7)) Z FER - N T — =%
The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at 31 =A=+—H ZEWEBRAEFHAE
March 2013 amounted to HK$125,101,000 (2012: E%/4125,101,0008 L (=& — 4 :
HK$50,554,000). 50,554,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE
39 COMMITMENTS 39 KiE
(1) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (1) £ A FHE

(11

At 31 March 2013, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments in respect of
rented premises under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

N=F-=F=A=+—H A%HE
SR B 0 32 AR R A AT AR 4
RN 2 BIEA S BT ¢

Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Not later than one year —F R 5,430 2,261
Later than one year and not later —FRERAFA
than five years 4,522 97
9,952 2,358

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2013, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

CRINES
R-Z—=ZF=ZA=+—H0 A%H
B TEIEARSE

Group

AEH
2013 2012
—EFE-—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&ET FHET

Contracted but not provided for: SHENEE S LR

— Property, plant and equipment — % BB k& 92,517 =
92,517 -

HE4E1/c10C
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40 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 40 EERINETF
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The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% to 10% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China.
The Group contributes approximately 7% to 12% of
the basic salaries of its employees, and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Macao,
the Group has arranged its Macao employees to
join the government provident fund scheme (the
“Macao Scheme”). The Group and its employees
makes monthly contributions of MOP30 and MOP15,
respectively, per month to each employee to the Macao
Scheme, and had no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the aggregate
amount of the Group's contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes were approximately
HK$4,001,000 (2012: HK$3,427,000).

AEBDAEBBEELZH2ERGIER
et El ([RiEEEE]) - Bt
EREHNNRFE BB L EEAEE -RIE
wEEs 8 AEEREREE N RIMKRS
HERATERENE A RZAt ST &5
RIEBWAZ5%ZE10% - — X HHK-
AEESEELE - TNREE-

A6 B 4% BR P B A B AR BI BOE B2 JR5E -
REEFBEAEZ &8 RBERE BRI
SHER - ARBIRERBEEATENTIRE
12%MH 3K - B F RN - U 8BRS
BRESHRREBHN 2HEMBEE-BIRE
BRRFTEIBEMERKNEE X NENZE
ERARIRE o

WRRFZRAERD AEEE R HE
BPIEBE2 MBI A B8 (DRPIG
gl AEENEREESANEGRERD
Rl R FIET B4t FR30R I K 158 -
B8RRI YEERTEARS SR
Rg@EM s EmEE-

BE-T=F=A=t+—BLFE:
AREEREMRKSEEIEL 2 #H3K
=4 54,001,0008 7 (ZF— —4F:
3,427,000/ 7T ) ©
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUGA TECHNOLOGY

LIMITED

In May 2012, the Group entered into a business
combination to acquire the remaining 50% equity
interest in Suga Technology Limited, a then jointly
controlled entity, from the other shareholder of Suga
Technology Limited. The consideration was satisfied
by US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,500,000)
in cash. A contingent consideration, subject to a
maximum of US$500,000, was also agreed should
certain performance results achieved by Suga
Technology Limited during the 30-month period from
the acquisition date. Upon acquisition, Suga Technology
Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group.

Based on a valuation performed by an independent
valuer, the fair value of the 50% equity interest in Suga
Technology Limited previously held by the Group on
acquisition date was assessed to be HK$8,908,000. A
gain on remeasurement of this previously held interest
of HK$8,908,000 was recognised in “other gains, net”
accordingly in the consolidated income statement (Note
29).

In accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business
Combination”, the Group is required to recognise the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that satisfy the recognition criteria at their fair value
at the acquisition date. Accordingly, the Group has
undertaken a purchase price allocation allocating the
purchase consideration to the identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired at the acquisition date. Significant
accounting estimates have been involved when
performing the allocation.

41 WEEERHARL A

NZTE——FRA AEBFEFTELS
HRAEROEREHEREERTS
RAGIME —NBRRKBEERMTER
DA EBRO0%B AR - ZRENE S
2,000,0003 7T (485 7215,500,000/% 7T )
XAt AN IE - B R UEE B BB A
=T EABMEAN EERMARAFE
NETRBEE s ERERS
500,000E T - RINEE EIB% - EERMTAE
RARIKAAEENEZENB AR -

BRI BB EMAT TR E - PR Uk
BE - LR AEEMBFEEREERNTE
BRAR 250 AERZN A FEFTEHAE
8,908,000/ 7T ° It * sZ SE BT FT 45 A fE
B 5T 8 MU 258,908,000 7T & &L FE 47
AWEERA B B8] PR (W
$29) o

REBBMEREENEIR (KEFT)
[ZRAH] AEBARNEERBNR
FERRNTAERENNAHREE 8
ERIBRE B AEEDEETE
BEE R HBEREIEEWREBHA
BRNEENBANEG ETHEKY
KRBANGFHAET

8 HET/2102
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

41 ACQUISITION OF SUGA TECHNOLOGY 41 WEEEHNERLA (&)
LIMITED (continued)
The following table summarises the consideration TERBEFRKBSEENNNRE U RE
payable for the acquisition and the amounts of the Wi BB R B AN EEMNRE&E
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at K< %8 o
the acquisition date.
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration BeERE 15,500
Fair value of previously held interest LRI E RN QA 8,908
Total consideration BB 24,408
Recognised amounts of ARRNBABRENAERENEREE
identifiable assets acquired and BAFE:
liabilities assumed, at fair value:
— intangible asset — customer relationship —EFEEE - FE A% 25,770
— cash and cash equivalents —HeEkREEEY 18,802
— trade and other receivables — R E 5 AR 3k K EL At JE ek I8 30,952
— trade and other payables — T B 5 AR 3k & EL At JE 5 kI8 (49,754)
— deferred tax liabilities —EEHIEAR (4,252)
Total identifiable net assets Al HRFE ERTE 21,518
Goodwill B 2,890
The following table shows the net cash acquired at the TERBEEWREBHEEANTR .
acquisition date:
HK$'000
FHET
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EBANRERESEEYD 18,802
Cash consideration paid ENBRERE (15,500)
Net cash acquired ERANFIRS 3,302




41

42
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIEFE

ACQUISITION OF SUGA TECHNOLOGY
LIMITED (continuea)

No contingent consideration was recognised as at
the acquisition date and as at 31 March 2013 as the
directors consider the specified performance results are
unlikely to be achieved.

Goodwill arising from acquisition of HK$2,890,000 is
attributable to the existence of an assembled workforce
and synergy expected to be achieved upon acquisition
of Suga Technology Limited through efficiency and cost
savings.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$136,000 have been
charged to general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2013.

Revenue included in the consolidated income
statement since acquisition date contributed by Suga
Technology Limited was HK$152,758,000. This
acquired business contributed profit of HK$13,533,000
for the year ended 31 March 2013 from acquisition
date.

Had the remaining 50% equity interest in Suga
Technology Limited been consolidated from 1 April
2012, the consolidated income statement would show
pro-forma revenue of HK$1,108,922,000 and pro-
forma profit of HK$78,887,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2013, 40.40% of the total issued
shares of the Company is owned by Superior View
Inc., a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands,
and 16.03% of the total issued shares of the Company
is owned by Billion Linkage Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands. The ultimate
controlling parties of the Group are Dr. Ng Chi Ho, a
director of the Company, and Ms. Lee Wai Fun, wife of
Dr. Ng Chi Ho, respectively.

41

42

KWEEEHRTERAS (2

HREZFRASTAAREINEHARRE
e A ERNKERRAMN T —=
A=t BEBREMXKERE-

W i 72 A B9 782,890,000/ T 2R B R AK
M B EZ MR BB EERT AR R R
TEHRE B R [ 65 E A AN/ 77 LS Y 16
[R] 2% FE -

W AE AR AR136,0008 TEREE T
—=F=A=t—HILFENGEKER
N—RERITHREEE B HE-

GRAEWEREEE WEAEREER
it A BR 7~ 7 & BAAY U A A152,758,0007%8
T RBE-_ZT—=ZF=ZA=+—HLItHF
EA - FTUR RS 75 7 B Ui B HRE B Bl s
F113,533,000/% 7T ©

BREEERMER QR H & F50%A
AEZE-_T——_FHNA—ARER

51,108,922,000% 7T+ i # £ % 7| A&
78,887,000/ 7T ©

EREALRS

R-ZZE—=FE=A=+—8 XAQFC2
BITIRID #EE 2 40.40% VM E BB R KX
BY B xS 2 2 Al Superior View Inc. ¥
B MARBIEBEITIRGN B 216.03% T3
AR R 8 R 2 B S sk it A 32 2 2 R Billion
Linkage Limited# A ° A& E&ALIERA L
DRABRAREEREZELRFTES
T (REKBLZETF) -

8 HET/2102
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—=F=-A=+—HIFE

42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(A) TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

In additional to amounts stated elsewhere, during
the year, the Group has the following related party
transactions:

42 ERAEBEANTR S (&)

(A) EEREALRS

F%%ﬁﬁﬁ%}itﬁ’\](ﬁ%ﬁﬁ\\ A REBERFAR
DETTNIBEEALRS

2013 2012
—E—-=K —E_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FET
Sales of electronic products to m—HERE ARz D
a minority shareholder of a BRELHEEFER
subsidiary 9,890 -
Sales of electronic products to m—EAHERZEHERELHE
a jointly controlled entity B FEm 20,625 268,194
Management fee received from B — A L R4 I & 82 AR
a jointly controlled entity ZEES 8 180
Management fee paid to M) — R T E A
a jointly controlled entity ZEEE - 188

In the opinion of the Directors, the above
transactions were carried out in the normal course
of the Group’s business and conducted at terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties.

(B) KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

Remuneration of key personnel management,
including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 36, is as follows:

EERR LARFINAKEBEER
BBIZ T AR TT B AR E 2 IR UE
17e

(B) EZEEE RN
TEEEBABZHFMERENR
RABEERETHERFEE 2R
(PP X364 ER) - HHI T -

2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Salaries and other short-term e M EME H{E & @ T
employee benefits 10,967 10,922
Post-employment benefits BB 2R A 630 605

11,597 11,527
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42 ERAEBEANTR S (&)
(Continued)
(C) YEAR-END BALANCES WITH RELATED (C) BEBMEANT 2 FRER
PARTIES
2013 2012
—_EFE—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#&T FETT
Amount due from an associate FEUR — R HE = A Al 3KI8
(Note a) (MizEa) 267 267
Amount due from a jointly controlled & 4 — RS 2L [A) 422 il & 42
entity (Note a) A (Maxa) - 30,083
Amounts due to minority shareholders fE 1< i B A & 2 D&% &=
of subsidiaries (Note b) IR (MfsEDb) 2,235 1,250
Amounts due from minority NG ()
shareholders of subsidiaries FIE (MfsEb)
(Note b) 925 -
Note a: The terms of balances with related parties are Mirka : ERREE AL 2 &8 2GR E
disclosed in Notes 11 and 12. 11 K 124 55 -
Note b: The balances were unsecured, non-interest MisEb : #spAEERT &8 RIZERE
bearing and repayable on demand, and are B WoRFrAEMmERNRIERE
included in other payables and other receivables, 1t & LU R IE o

respectively.

HE4E1/c10C




Five Year Fin%mial Summary (Unaudited)
Z 777 e
hFETBRE CREFERT)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HZEZZ—= F=-A=+—HILFE
A summary of the consolidated results and of the AEEBEARERBRFEEZHEEEBENARELE

consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five BENBEBRESYWT
financial years is set out below:

o

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+—HL%E

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“EENEF —T-TF —E——% —E-CF ZE-ZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TAET TAET FTAET FHET
Consolidated results GEXE
Revenue e 812,034 959,866 1,191,058 1,241,997 1,107,488
Operating profit 1B 28,553 63,407 101,816 99,962 81,806
Profit before income tax BR TS T A& A 28,198 63,213 102,366 101,843 82,817
Income tax expense FIEHiEY (3,274) (6,708) (11,928) (8,757) (5,364)
Profit attributable to the AAREEAES
owners of the Company Pl 24,924 56,505 90,438 93,252 77,841
As at 31 March
W=B=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTHE —T-%F —E——F —T--F —5-Z=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT TET FTAEL FET
(restated)
(271)
Consolidated assets and liabilities Z&EER & &
Property, plant and equipment v EN BT 62,761 105,892 113,367 116,678 117,366
Land use rights T 4,399 4,267 4,225 4,159 60,798
Intangible asset B EE - - - = 21,046
Goodwill Bk 1,059 1,059 1,059 1,059 3,949
Interests in associates REEE N R 2 = = = 1,733 1,868
Amount due from an associate JE M — s = A A
> AR A - S S 267 267
Bl SC Long-term loan receivables REEE W = - - 16,250 16,575
S Eg Available-forsale financial asset At EMBEE - - 4,150 2,679 4,323
- = Financial assets at fair value BRFELABRZ
== through profit or loss - long term K EE K5 - = 11,481 6,993 1,279
o — H _ (ML AMOR _ _
S 2 Bonds investments - long term  fEAHRE —KH 14,011 9,109 7,711
N—>0 Deferred income tax assets BB HEE 2,179 2,301 1,838 3,665 3,524
= §:(Z> Other non-current receivables HibIEmE EW IR - - - = 3,875
g —— Current assets mBEE 329,723 402,758 487,590 504,869 513,543
w g% Current liabilities MEEE (109,412) (156,927) (200,039) (204,985) (174,534)
g Net current assets TEBBEETE 220,311 245,831 287,551 299,884 339,009
r Total assets less current liabiliies BEZERTEEE 290,709 359,350 437,732 462,476 581,590
Long term borrowings REEE (3,636) (26,163) (33,499) (22,463) (85,532)
Other non-current liabilities HihEREBAE - - - - (17,595)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEHERE (2,746) (2,579) (2,275) (2,807) (5,759)
Total equity EngE 284,327 330,608 401,958 437,206 472,704
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